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CUB ELECPARTS INC.
Procedures for 2022 Regular Shareholders’ Meeting

I. Call the Meeting to Order
II. Meeting Chair Remarks
III. Report

IV. Adoption

V. Election

VI. Discussion

VII. Extempore Motions

VIII. Adjournment



CUB ELECPARTS INC.
Agenda for 2022 Regular Shareholders’ Meeting

Time: 10:00 a.m., May 26, 2022
Location: No. 6, Lane 546, Section 6, Zhanglu Road, Fuxing
Township, Changhua County
[.  Call the Meeting to Order
II. Meeting Chair Remarks
III. Report
(1) 2021 Business Report
(2) Report on Audit Committee's review of 2021 business
report and financial statements.
(3) Report on Investment in Mainland China
(4) Report on endorsement and guarantee in 2021
(5) Report on the distribution of profit sharing remuneration
for employees and directors in 2021
(6) Report on the Amendment to the Regulations for Employee
Stock Options
IV. Adoption
(1) The 2021 business report and financial statements are
hereby submitted for your adoption.
(2) The 2021 earnings distribution proposal is hereby
submitted for your adoption.
V. Election
(1) Full re-election of directors and independent directors
VI. Discussion
(1) Proposed amendment to the Company’s “Regulations for

Acquisition or Disposal of Assets”



(2) Proposed amendment to the Company’s “Rules of
Procedure for Shareholders' Meetings”
(3) Proposed amendment to the Company’s “Regulations for
Endorsement and Guarantee”
(4) Release of new directors from non-compete restriction
(5) Capital increase from earnings with issuance of new shares
VII. Extempore Motions
VIII. Adjournment



[Report]
No. 1
Subject: 2021 Business Report is hereby submitted for your review.
Please refer to pages 13~30- of this Handbook (Attachment 1) for the Business Report.

No. 2

Subject: Audit Committee's report on 2021 business report and financial statements is

hereby submitted for your review

Explanation:

(1) The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31,

2021, including the balance sheet, statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity, and statement of cash flows, have been
audited by CPAs Chen, Cheng-Hsueh and Chang, Tzu-Shin from KPMG
Taiwan, who have issued an unqualified audit report. The aforementioned
financial statements, together with the business report and the earnings
distribution proposal have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which
has issued a review report. Please refer to pages 20 to38 of this Handbook
(Attachments 2 to 5).

(2) The Audit Committee is invited to present their review report.

No. 3
Subject: Report on Investment in Mainland China
Explanation:
1.  Report on execution of reinvestment (Excluding investees in Mainland China)
USD amount in thousands / number of shares in thousands of shares
Investing company Investee Main Original investment [Holding at the end of the period| Investee (Recognized in| Remarks
company business amount company | the period
items
Name Name Its Item End of the | End of last Number of| Perce| Carrying Profits | Gain (losses)
location period year shares |ntage amount | (losses) for|in investment
the period
The Company Silver Cub Inc Samoa Investment 233,066 233,060 7,110 100% 913,78 43,601 43,601 Subsidiary
: holding  |(USD7,110)| (USD7,110 (Note 1)
. (Golden Cub Anguilla | Investment USD7,110f USD7,11 7,110 | 100% USD33,017| USDL,557 USD1,557| Subsidiary
Silver Cub Inc. .
Inc. holding (Note 1)
The Company IRoyal Cub Inc.| Republic | Investment 56,175 56,175 1,919 70% 47,126 782 547| Subsidiary
of holding  |(USD1,919)[(USD1,919 (Note 1)
Seychelles
Royal Cub Inc. [Ever Cub Inc. | Republic | Investment USD2,741| USD2,741 2,741(100% USD2.,432 USD2§ USD28| Subsidiary
of holding (Note 1)
Seychelles




Ever Cub Inc. ITM Engine Carson. | Automobile | USD2,807| USD2,807 2,458 100% USD2,432] USD2§ USD28| Subsidiary
IComponents, U.S.A. | Parts Trading (Note 1)
Inc.
The Company IT™ Taiwan | International 10,500 10,501 1,050| 70% 8,423 1 1| Subsidiary
IAUTOPARTS Trade (Note 1)
INTERNATIO
INAL INC.
The Company IHARBINGER | Taiwan |Communicatio| 1,509,865 927,841 44,534 |76.72 1,447,413 (56,902)| (41,195)| Subsidiary
TECHNOLOG| ns Electronics % (Note 1)
Y and
ICORPORATI Government
ION Project
Construction
HARBINGER [HARVEST Taiwan | Controlled 5,000 5,000 500 [ 100% 5,375 (151), (151)| Subsidiary
TECHNOLOGY IOPTOELECT Telecommunic (Note 1)
ICORPORATION IRONICS ations
ICORPORATI Radio-Freque
ION ncy Devices
and Materials
Imports
The Company ICUBTEK Taiwan Motor 596,907, 513,20 40,595 [ 44.61 430,395 14,541 11,236 Subsidiary
INC. Vehicles and % (Note 1)
Parts
Manufacturing]
ICUBTEK INC. ICHIMEI Taiwan Motor 84,000 84,001 2,800 | 14.74 4 (14,921) (3,693) Note 2
IMOTOR Vehicles and %
IELECTRONI Parts
ICS CO., LTD. Manufacturing]
ICUBTEK INC. Anguilla | Investment 176,330 36,436 6,200 | 100% 224,283 46,081 46,081| Subsidiary
(Globe Cub holding (USD| (USD| (Note 1)
Inc. 6,200) 1,200
Republic | Investment | USD 6,200 USD 6,200 | 100% USD 8,929 USD 1,646 USD 1,646/ Subsidiary
Globe Cub Inc. (Glory Cub of holding 1,200 (Note 1)
Inc. Seychelles

Note: Eliminated when the consolidated financial statements were prepared.

2.

Report on execution of investment in Mainland China

Unit: NT$/Thousands of USD

Investee in Mainland| Main Business Paid-up|Investme . Investment amount| Accumulated [Profit or loss|Shareholding| Gain (loss)| Investment at | Investment
China Items capital nt Accumulate remitted or investment of the percentage of]| in the end of the income
Method | d amount | recovered for the amount investee the investment period repatriated as|
remitted current period remitted |company for| Company's [recognized| Book value |of the period
from from Taiwan| the period direct or |during the .
Taiwan at at the end of indirect period
the the period investment
beginning of] .
the period
Company name Accumulate|Remittanc|Recover
d e y
investment
amount
CUB ELECPARTS  [Manufacturing, 233,066|Investme 233,060 - - 233,066 43,602 100 % 43,601 913,780 -
INC., Shanghai processing and | (USD7,110)nt in (USD7,110 (USD7,110), (3%)
trading Mainland
lautomobile parts| China
land motorcycle through
switches reinvestm
lent in an
lexisting
company
in a third
region
ICUBTEK INC. IMotor Vehicles 176,330/Investme 36,436 139,984 - 176,330, 46,081 44.61 % 20,557 100,053 -
(Shanghai) land Parts (USD6,200)nt in (USD1,200) USDS,000] (USD6,200) (3%)
IManufacturing Mainland
(China
through
reinvestm
lent in an
lexisting
company




in a third
region

Note: Eliminated when the consolidated financial statements were prepared.

3. Reinvestment limit in Mainland China

Accumulated amount

remitted from Taiwan at the

end of the period

Investment amount in

Investment amount approved
by the Investment
Commission, Ministry of
Economic Affairs (MOEA)

In accordance with the
regulations of the

Investment Commission,

MOEA

Mainland China Investment limit in
Mainland China
NTD$409,396 NTD$409,396 2,796,614
(USD$13,310) (USD$13,310)
No. 4
Subject: Report on endorsement and guarantee in 2021
Explanation:
Unit: Thousands of NTD (USD)
Endorser/g|  Endorsee/guarantee |For asinglel] Maximum |Endorsem| Actual [Guarantee| Accumulated | Endorsement By By For Mainland
uarantor enterprise | endorsement |ent at the | amount by endorsement |and guarantee| parent |subsidiary region
for the period|end of the property amount company|
period
No.| Company | Company name |Relatio| Endorseme |Endorsement(Guarante| Drawn |Endorsem|As a percentage| Maximum For |[For parent|Endorsement
name nship nt and and e balance ent of the net worth limit subsidiar| company and
(Note | guarantee | guarantee Guarantee| in the most (Note 2) y Endorseme|guarantee for
3) limit balance amount | recent financial Endorse| ntand the region
. statements ment | guarantee
(Note 1) and
guarante
e
0 [The ITM Engine 2 705,152 25,682 24,912 17,438 0.71%| 1,762,881 Y
Company (Components, Inc. (USD900
0 [The HARBINGER 1.2 705,152 575,000{ 550,000 430,675 15.60% | 1,762,881 Y
Company [TECHNOLOGY
ICORPORATION
0 [The 3S System 1.2 705,152 150,000 150,000 4.25%| 1,762,881 Y
Company [Technology Inc.
Note 1: The amount of the Company's endorsement and guarantee for a single company shall

not exceed 20% of the Company's current net worth.

Note 2: The total amount of the Company's external guarantee shall not exceed 50% of the

Company's current net worth.

Note 3: The relationship between the endorser/guarantor and the endorsee/guarantee is as

follows:

1. Companies with which the Company has a business relationship.




2.

No. 5

Subsidiaries in which the Company directly or indirectly holds more than 50% of

the shares.

Subject: Report on the distribution of profit sharing remuneration for employees and
directors in 2021

Explanation:

I ~ In accordance with Article 28-1 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation,

No. 6

considering the shareholders' interests and taking into account the industry
standard and the overall economic environment, the Company proposes to
appropriate NT$12,997,136 as employees' profit sharing remuneration and
NT$6,498,568 as directors' profit sharing remuneration for 2021.

The appropriation of employees' profit sharing remuneration of
NT$12,997,136 and directors' profit sharing remuneration of NT$6,498,568
will be fully paid in cash.

The amount of profit sharing remuneration for employees and directors and
the method of payment have been discussed and approved by the

Remuneration Committee.

Subject: Amendment to the Regulations for Employee Stock Options

Explanation: In response to the request of the competent authority, the Company

amended the content of the Regulations for Issuance and Subscription of Employee

Stock Options. Please refer to Attachment 6 for the comparison of the amended

provisions.



[Adoption]

No. 1 (proposed by the Board of Directors)

Subject: The 2021 business report and financial statements are hereby submitted for

your adoption.

Explanation:

(1)

)

Resolution:

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2021, including the balance sheet, statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity, and statement of cash flows, have been
audited by CPAs Chen, Cheng-Hsueh and Chang, Tzu-Shin from KPMG
Taiwan, together with the business report have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, who has issued a written review report on record and are
hereby submitted for your adoption.

For the independent auditor’s report, the 2021 Business Report, and the
financial statements, please refer to pages13 to38 (Attachments 1 to 4) of
the Handbook.

No. 2 (proposed by the Board of Directors)

Subject: The 2021 earnings distribution proposal is hereby submitted for your adoption.

Explanation:

(1

)

For 2021, net profit was NT$515,927,070, and after deducting
NT$8,150,287 from special reserve set aside with deductions from equity,
adding NT$1,198,607 from remeasurement of defined benefit plans,
providing NT§51,712,568 for 10% legal reserve, and including
NT$319,836,419 from prior years' undistributed earnings, the
available-for-distribution earnings for the period amounted to $777,099,241
(see the balance sheet and income statement for details).

It is planned to distribute dividends of NT$243,833,330 to shareholders
from the available-for-distribution earnings for the period, of which
NT$121,916,670 will be distributed in cash, and the remaining
NT$121,916,660 will be capitalized by issuing shares, and will be
distributed first from the net profit after tax for 2021. After the distribution,
there will still be undistributed earnings of NT$533,265,911.



(3) Please refer to page 38 (Attachment) of the Handbook for the earnings
distribution schedule.

(4) After this case is passed at the regular shareholders' meeting, it is proposed
that the Board of Directors be authorized by the regular shareholders'
meeting to set the base date of ex-right and ex-dividend and other related
matters.

(5) In the event that the number of outstanding shares is affected by subsequent
changes in the Company's capital stock and the shareholders’ dividend
distribution rate needs to be changed, it is proposed that the Board of
Directors be authorized by the regular shareholders' meeting to handle the
matters at its sole discretion.

[Election]

No. 1 (proposed by the Board of Directors)
Subject: Full re-election of directors and independent directors

Explanation:

1. The term of office of the original directors and independent directors will
expire, and it is proposed to fully re-elect the 14th term directors and
independent directors of the Company at the 2022 regular shareholders’
meeting.

2. The new independent directors will take office immediately after the
shareholders' meeting and their term of office shall be from May 26, 2022 to
May 25, 2025.

3. In accordance with Article 17-1 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation,
directors and independent directors shall be elected based on the candidate

nomination system by the shareholders' meeting from a list of candidates.



[Discussion]

No. 1 (proposed by the Board of Directors)
Subject: Proposed amendment to the Company’s “Regulations for Acquisition or
Disposal of Assets.”

Explanation: In line with the regulations issued by the Financial Supervisory
Commission (FSC), the Company's "Regulations for Acquisition and
Disposal of Assets" are amended. Please refer to Attachment 7 of the

Handbook for the comparison of amended provisions.
Resolution:

No. 2 (proposed by the Board of Directors)
Subject: Proposed amendment to the Company’s “Rules of Procedure for Shareholders'
Meetings”

Explanation: In accordance with the FSC’s letter Jin-Guan-Zheng-Jiao-Zi No.
1100365384, the goal is to strengthen the operation of the shareholders'
meeting, to help investors know the content of the resolutions of the
shareholders' meeting and to disclose the reporting schedule in advance.
Please refer to Attachment 8 of this Handbook for the comparison of the

amended provisions.
Resolution:

No. 3 (proposed by the Board of Directors)
Subject: Proposed amendment to the Company’s “Regulations for Endorsement and
Guarantee”

Explanation: The amendment is proposed in accordance with the Group's operational
development plan and business needs. Please refer to Attachment 9 of this

Handbook for the comparison of amended provisions.
Resolution:

No. 4 (proposed by the Board of Directors)
Subject: Release of new directors from non-compete restriction
Explanation:
1. In accordance with Article 209 of the Company Act, a director who does
anything for himself or on behalf of another person that is within the scope

10



Resolution:

of the Company's business, shall explain to the meeting of shareholders the
essential contents of such an act and secure its approval.

The Company intends to agree to lift the non-compete restriction on the
directors to be re-elected by the 2022 shareholders' meeting who operate
companies for themselves or for other persons in the same or similar scope
of business as the Company and act as directors, provided that the
Company's interests are not harmed.

. Please refer to Attachment 10 for the concurrent positions held by the

directors and independent directors of the Company in other companies.

No. 5 (proposed by the Board of Directors)
Subject: Capital increase from earnings with issuance of new shares

Explanation:

1.

The Company proposes to appropriate NT$121,916,660 for capital increase
from the undistributed earnings for 2021 as shareholders’ bonus with
1ssuance of 12,191,666 new shares of common stock with par value of
NT$10 each.

For this capital increase from earnings with issuance of new shares, the
allotment shall be made in proportion to the shareholding by the
shareholders as stated in the shareholder roster on the base date of the stock
dividends, and approximately 100 shares of stock dividends shall be
allotted for every thousand shares. For any fractional shares, the
shareholders may, within five days from the base date of stock dividends,
pool the fractional shares of their own accord, after which the shareholder
shall be paid in cash in accordance with Article 240 of the Company Act
with calculation up to the NT$1, and the Chairperson of the Board shall be
authorized to contact certain persons to subscribe for the fractional shares
that are not pooled or paid in cash at par value.

The rights and obligations of the new shares issued under the capital
increase are the same as the original shares issued, and the Board of
Directors is authorized to set the base date for the allotment of shares after

the approval of the shareholders' meeting and the competent authorities. In

11



Resolution:

the event that the number of outstanding shares is affected by the exercise
of employee stock options, the conversion of the Company's bonds, or the
repurchase of the Company's shares, it is proposed to request the
shareholders’ meeting to fully authorize the Board of Directors to deal with
matters related to changes.

The Board of Directors is authorized to handle all matters related to the
capital increase with issuance of new shares if changes are required by the
competent authorities or due to objective circumstances.

Please refer to page 38 (Attachment 5) of the Handbook for the earnings

distribution schedule.

[Extempore Motions]

[Adjournment]

12



Business Report;

Hello, ladies and gentlemen!

First of all, welcome to this year's shareholders' meeting during your busy schedule. On behalf of
the Company and its subsidiaries, we would like to express our highest appreciation for your support
and encouragement. We would like to report the 2021 operating status and future outlook of the

Company and its subsidiaries as follows:
L. 2021 Business Results

1. Implementation results of 2021 Business Plan
For 2021, the net operating revenues of the Company and its subsidiaries were $4,080,435
thousand, representing a 22.16% increase over the previous year, and the net profits before tax
were $582,507 thousand, representing a 99.15% increase over the previous year.
In the past year, the Company and its subsidiaries adhered to their business priorities,
actively expanding their business, on the one hand, strengthening cost control on the other, and

investing in new product development in the hope of bringing greater performance and business

growth.
Unit: In thousands of NTD
Year
2021 2020
Item
Operating revenues 4,080,435 3,340,199
Operating gross profits 1,671,010 1,272,411
Net operating profits
P &p 592,662 386,368
(losses)
Net profits after tax
attributable to
515,928 244,534
shareholders of the
parent company
Earnings per share
8P 4.23 2.03
(NTD)

2. Implementation status of budget:
In accordance with the current regulations, the Company did not disclose its financial

forecast for 2021, so it is not applicable.

3. Analysis of financial receipts and expenditures and profitability

(1) Unit: In thousands of NTD

13



Item Increase Increase
2021 2020 (decrease) in | (decrease) in
amount percentage %
Cash fl fi
s Tows Hom 734231 | 254,529 479,702 188.47
operating activities
Cash fl fi
s Tows Hom 731,044 | -285,695 445,349 155.88
investing activities
Cash fl fi
asi Tows Hom 1,099,156 | -172,377 | 1,271,533 -737.65
financing activities

Analysis of cash flows for the most recent year:

1. Operating activities: The net cash inflow of $734,231 thousand was mainly due to the fact that
the COVID-19 pandemic gradually went under control so that sales stabilized during the
period.

2. Investing activities: The net cash outflow of $731,044 thousand was mainly due to the
acquisition of real estate and expansion of plant and equipment.

3. Financing activities: The net cash inflow of $1,099,156 thousand was mainly due to the
increase in short-term loans and the cash capital increase of subsidiaries.

(2) Profitability

Profitability (return on assets, return on equity, net profit margin, earnings per share,

etc.): Although affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, revenue and profitability gradually

recovered.

Item 2021 2020
Return on assets (%) 6.01% 3.66%
Return on equity (%) 11.85% 6.18%

Operating 0 o
As a percentage of profits 48.61% 31.69%
aid-in capital (% Net profits

’ pret () afterptax 47.78% 23.99%
Net profit margin 11.95% 7.49%
Earnings per share (NTD) 4.23 2.03

4. Research and development

The sales of products of the Company and its subsidiaries have mainly been for export
for a long time. Therefore, for the timeliness of product development, product manufacturing
quality requirements and delivery accuracy, we adopt high standards for self-requirement, and
also maintain a conscientious attitude towards strengthening the R&D personnel's software and

hardware design capability, mold design and development capability, electromechanical

14



II.

integration capability, modularization capability, and high-frequency RF design and
development capability, and constantly ask for improvement, as well as constantly replenish the
outstanding talents in the related technology fields to improve the Company's own research and
development capabilities. In addition, in view of the diversification of the Company's and its
subsidiaries' products, we need to be more cautious in investing and developing products, and
we will analyze the actual sales situation to select hot-selling products, modular products, or
models with potential for focused development and maintenance in order to maintain a highly
competitive advantage. In addition, we will deepen the research and development of Universal
TPMS (tire pressure monitoring system), and strengthen the decoding rate and simplification of
tools for the replacement of European and American TPMS vehicles. For the market in China,
we started to invest R&D resources to develop TPMS products for local vehicles in China,
effectively utilizing the existing advantages of the Company and its subsidiaries to gradually

enter the TPMS market in China.

The Company and its subsidiaries have independently developed the millimeter wave
radar for automotive applications and possess the core technologies of 24GHz, 77GHz and
79GHz millimeter wave radar with many core key technologies such as phase antenna
technology, radar algorithm technology and millimeter wave circuit technology, etc. In recent
years, we have not only developed a number of millimeter wave radar modules (24GHz,
77GHz and 79GHz), but also used them to develop and integrate various ADAS systems,
including blind spot detection (BSD), rear cross traffic alert (RCTA), door open warning
(DOW), lane change alert (LCA), Forward Collision Warning (FCW), Pedestrian Detection
(PD), Automatic Emergency Braking (AEB), Automatic Cruise Control (ACC), Stop-and-go,
Drone Obstacle Avoidance Radar, Level Crossing Obstacle Detection, Internal Wheel
Differential Active Warning, Radar and Image Fusion (Forward Collision and Lane Diversion
Warning Fusion). The Company’s Blind Spot Detection (BSD) and Forward Collision Warning
(FCW) systems have passed the tests by TUV NORD of Germany, an international certification
unit, and we are the first local company to pass the ISO 15623 and Mainland China’s GB/T
33577 standard tests in the automotive field on both sides of the Taiwan Strait, which will help
to win orders from vehicle manufacturers for ADAS Through the existing and newly developed
AM and OEM market channels, we will also be able to secure huge business opportunities for
general passenger cars, pick up, RV campers, heavy motorcycles, motorcycles, school buses,

and other large commercial vehicles (e.g. tour buses, commuter buses, and tour buses).

Summary of 2021 Business Plan

Item Description of Contents

15



Product

Direction

10.

Continue to increase the completeness of our product lineup and
add new vehicle models (e.g. Korean and European models) to
reduce our customers' procurement costs and satisfy their needs
in one purchase.

Related derivative applications of TPMS tire pressure monitoring
system products

Gradually increase the launch of electronic products, develop
towards higher margin and higher technology categories, and
enhance the depth of products.

Develop parts for original manufacturers and take the initiative to
launch more competitive products in the market.

Actively participate in the system development after TPMS and
ADAS legislation.

Strengthen the design capability of vehicle switches, sensors and
vehicle electronics, and command the key technologies of
automotive components.

Strengthen engineering management and information integration,
and bring in electromechanical talents to respond to new
technologies.

Independently research and develop millimeter wave radar for
automotive applications, with core technologies of high-end
24GHz, 77GHz and 79GHz millimeter wave radar and radar and
image fusion.

In addition to traditional passenger car applications, expand the
application of ADAS technology and introduce ADAS-related
application innovations into many new vehicle models and new
product applications, such as school buses, heavy motorcycles,
motorcycles, RV campers, and other large vehicles (e.g., tour
buses, commuter buses, and linkage vehicles).

Millimeter wave radar is used in non-vehicle applications such as
intelligent transportation, public constructions, security, water

conservancy, industry, and drones.

Production

Strategy

Implement scheduling and mass production point inspection to
ensure the quality of production and reduce unnecessary rework

and waste in production process.

16




III.

Continuously carry out COST DOWN i1n response to the increase
of raw material prices.

Strengthen product manufacturing specification standards and
verification capabilities.

Enhance automatic production capability and increase production
value.

Reduce the quantity and amount of inventory to prevent the stock

from becoming obsolete and respond early.

Scale of

Operations

In addition to consolidating the U.S., Central and South American
markets, developing the European market as the business
objective

Expand millimeter wave radar AM application products and
millimeter wave radar OEM products for automakers, and
strengthen the self-developed technology and application of
millimeter wave radar. In addition to the application of ADAS
systems (BSD, FCW, AEB, etc.) in general passenger cars, it also
introduces more innovations into new vehicle model markets and
applications, such as school buses, drones, public transportation
and traffic facilities (e.g., level crossings), large commercial
vehicles, etc. ...and other markets.

Ensure the quality of existing products to consolidate the existing
market, and enhance the accuracy and timeliness of delivery to
respond to the sales pattern of small volume and multiple SKU.
Expand the Company's product sales channels and generate
higher revenue through the integration of resources from
affiliates and the development and cooperation with new and

existing channel vendors to generate higher revenue results.

Future development strategy of the Company

Since its establishment, the Company has been adhering to an active and steady management
policy, gradually recruiting outstanding talents in various related fields to create maximum profits
for the Company and all employees. In addition to our own demands for speed of product
development and quality of products, we also continue to maintain stable and good cooperative
relationships with our existing customers, and expand our product sales channels or increase the

diversity of our products through reinvestment, etc. We are striving for stable profitability year

17




after year to create the best return on investment.

IV. Effect of the external competitive environment, regulatory environment and general business

environment

The Company has been responding to changes in the external competitive environment,

regulations and the general business environment through a sound and effective internal control

system, and has steadily gone through each economic cycle. Only institutionalized management

can lead the Company to sustainable business development. In addition, the Company is

constantly recruiting talents in various fields to enrich our human resources, so that we can

flexibly adjust the pace of our development and move forward toward our established goals in

response to the rapidly changing external factors.

1.

Maintain a complete supply system: The Company and its subsidiaries have formed a
complete supply network with various suppliers, so that the Company's production is flexible
enough to cope with changes in market demand in the face of cyclical fluctuations in the

economy.

Strengthen research and development capabilities: The Company and its subsidiaries focus on
product development and cultivation of research and development personnel, actively
strengthening the Company's research and development capabilities, improving process and
product quality, and actively developing related diverse products in line with market trends
and developing niche products with higher technological thresholds to increase the
Company's product breadth, which can mitigate the impact of the economic cycle on the

Company's business.

Strengthen customer relationships and actively explore new sources of customers: the
Company and its subsidiaries, in addition to actively strengthening customer relationships,
continue to explore new markets and gain channel benefits through new channel development
and cooperation or reinvestment, which can increase the sales visibility of the Company's
products and reduce the impact on the Company's business caused by fluctuations in the
economic conditions of individual regions or operational risks arising from individual sales

customers.

Strengthen the Company’s financial structure: In the face of the global economic cycle and
the impact of COVID-19 on the global economy, the Company and its subsidiaries maintain
good relationships with major cooperative banks in order to obtain better interest rates and
reduce interest expenses, and use capital market resources to strengthen the Company's

financial structure in a timely manner.
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5. Talent cultivation and development: The Company strengthens the education and traming of
its employees, actively cultivates professional talents, and provides related welfare measures

to strengthen the motivation of the employees and the Company's ability to respond to

changes in the economic climate.

Finally, we would like to thank all of the shareholders, ladies and gentlemen, as well as our

enthusiastic and dedicated colleagues for their long-standing support and encouragement of the
Company. And I wish you all

Good health All the best

|

=
=

Chairperson: Yu, Shan-Chuan

|

|

Managerial Officer, Yu, Shan-Chuan

]
Accounting Officer: Liu, Wan-Hua @Z

=
=
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Attachment 2

Audit Committee’s Report

The Board of Directors has prepared the Company’s 2021 financial statements,
business report and earnings distribution proposal. Among them, the Company's 2021
financial statements have been audited by CPAs from KPMG Taiwan, who have issued
an independent auditor’s report. The above-mentioned 2021 financial statements,
business report, and earnings distribution proposal have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and no discrepancies have been found. In accordance with the provisions of

the Securities and Exchange Act and the Company Act, we hereby report the above for

your examination.

To
2022 Regular Shareholders’ Meeting

CUB ELECPARTS INC.

Convener of the Audit Committfes|( ang, Chuan-Li

Date: March 8, 2022
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of CUB ELECPARTS INC.:
Opinion

We have audited the parent-company-onlyfinancial statements of CUB ELECPARTS INC.(“the Company™),
which comprise the parent-company-only balance sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the parent-
company-onlystatements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended
and notes to the parent-company-onlyfinancial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying parent-company-onlyfinancial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the parent-company-onlyfinancial position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its
parent-company-onlyfinancial performance and its parent-company-onlycash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Certification of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Parent-company-only Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Certified Public Accountants Code of Professional Ethics in Republic of China
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the parent-company-only financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the parent-company-onlyfinancial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

1. Revenue recognition

Please refer to note 4(m) “Revenue recognition” for the accounting policy on revenue recognition; note 6(t)
“Revenues from contracts with customers”for revenue recognition of contract.

Description of key audit matter:

Revenue is the key performance indicator to evaluate the performance by the investors and management.
Since the revenue is recognized based on each sale order and contract terms to be identified, for expanding
the sales market, the management is devoted to developing a new distributor; therefore, the test for revenue
recognition is one of the important assessment items performed by the accountants for the purpose of auditing
the financial statements of the Company.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit:

The principal audit procedures for the above key audit matters by the accountant include testing the
controls surrounding revenue recognition; Analyzing there is any significant abnormality in a
change in customers between the current year and the prior year; sampling the top ten customers,
and reviewing the contracts and sales orders to evaluate the influence on revenue recognition and
assess the accounting treatment of related contracts is applied appropriately; performing a sample
test on sales transactions that took place before and after the balance sheet date, reviewing the
relevant documents, and assessing the accuracy of the timing of revenue recognition.

. Assessment of accounts receivable impairment

Please refer to Note 4(f) “Financial Instruments” for accounting policy of assessment of accounts
receivable impairment, Note 5(a) for accounting assumption, judgments and estimation uncertainty
of assessment of accounts receivable impairment, and Note 6(b) for the disclosure of assessment of
notes and accounts receivable.

Description of key audit matter:

The Company's accounts receivable are mainly from automobile component customers and are
concentrated on certain customers. The impairment loss of accounts receivable assessment is based
on management's subjective judgment. Thus, the assessment of accounts receivable impairment is
one most important evaluations in performing our audit procedures.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

The principal audit procedures for the above key audit matters by the accountant include analyzing
the aging of accounts receivable; sampling and reviewing the relevant documents as well as
calculating the accuracy of the aging of accounts receivable; understanding and evaluating the
management’s consideration relating to overdue receivables, considering the receipt of cash after the
year?end, and understanding the possibility of remaining receivables collection. In addition, the
reasonableness of the provision for impairment losses is understood and assessed based on the
customer's historical receipt status, industrial economic condition, and the concentration of the
credit risk.

. Assessment of impairment of investments (Goodwill) accounted for using equity method

Please refer to Note 4(k) “intangible assets” for the accounting policies. Note 5(b) for accounting
assumptions, judgments and estimation uncertainty of assessment of impairment of investments
accounted for using equity method, and Note (6) for details.

Description of key audit matter:

The assessment of impairment of investments accounted for using equity method is based on the
estimation of the future cash flow of the investee’s operation to determine the recoverable amount.
We list Equity method investments as one of our key audit matters because it is significant
uncertainty and contains the significant subjective judgment of the management.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit:

The principal audit procedures for the above key audit matters by the accountant include: assessing
whether the cash-generating unit and its related tested assets that the management has identified to
impair show possible signs of impairment and further understanding and testing the evaluation
models and key assumptions such as future cash flow projections, use period and a weighted
average cost of capital that the management use in the impairment test, and assessing the accuracy
of previous management forecasts; and carrying out sensitivity analysis of results. In addition to the
above assessment process, reviewing and assessing the reasonability of assumptions through the
report of the assessment of impairment loss of goodwill provided by the evaluation expert;
evaluating the qualifications and independence of the evaluator, and assessing whether the
accounting policies for goodwill impairment test and other relevant information have been
appropriately disclosed.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent-company-only financial
statements in accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of parent-
company-only financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including members of the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent-company-only Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent-company-onlyfinancial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent-company-onlyfinancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent-company-onlyfinancial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
parent-company-onlyfinancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent-company-onlyfinancial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the parent-company-onlyfinancial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the parent-company-onlyfinancial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Cheng-Hsueh, Chen and
Tsu-Hsin, Chang.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 8, 2022

Notes to Readers

The accompanying parent company only financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated statement of financial
position, financial performance and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the
Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such parent company only
financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ audit report and the accompanying parent company only financial statements are the English translation of the
Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the
English and Chinese language independent auditors’ audit report and parent company only financial statements, the Chinese version shall
prevail.
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CUB ELECPARTS INC.
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars , Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

4000
5000

6100
6200
6300
6450

7100
7010
7020
7050
7070

7900
7950

8300
8310

8311
8330

8341

8349

8360

8361
8399

8500

2021 2020
Amount % Amount %
Operating revenue(Notes 6(t) and 7) $ 2,640,062 100 1,804,953 100
Operating costs (Notes 6(d), (u), and 7) 1,540,754 58 1,120,239 62
Gross profit 1,099,308 42 684,714 38
Operating expenses (Note 6(0),(r), (v), and 7):
Selling expenses 125,808 5 49,358
Administrative expenses 118,526 4 96,934
Research and development expenses 182,244 7 189,986 10
Expected credit losses (reversal gains) (Note 6(b)) 35,069 1 (461) -
461,647 17 335,817 18
Net operating income 637,661 25 348,897 20
Non-operating income and expenses (Note 6(v)):
Interest income (Note 7) 3,397 - 4,243 -
Other income (Note 7) 47,322 2 18,485 1
Other gains and losses (30,787) (1) 83,251) (5
Finance costs(Note 6(n)) (22,602) (1) (17,036) (1)
Share of profit (loss) of associates and joint ventures accounted for using
equity method (4,629) _ - 11,554 1
(7,299) _ - (66,005) _ (4)
Profit (loss) from continuing operations before tax 630,362 25 282,892 16
Less: Income tax expenses(Note 6(p)) 114,434 4 38,358 2
Profit (loss) 515,928 21 244,534 14
Other comprehensive income:
Components of other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss
Gains (losses) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 1,432 - (1,154) -
Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures accounted for using equity method, components of
other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or (234) - 179 -
loss
Other components of other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss - - 571 -
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that
will not be reclassified to profit or loss - - - -
1,198 - (404) _ -
Components of other comprehensive income (loss) that will be
reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements 8,152) - 11,800 1
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that
will be reclassified to profit or loss - - - -
Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified (8,152) - 11,800 1
to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income(after tax) (6,954) - 11,396 1
Total comprehensive income S 508,974 21 255,930 15
Earnings per share (in dollars) (Note 6(s)):
Basic earnings per share $ 4.23 2.03
Diluted earnings per share $ 4.23 2.03

See accompanying notes to parent company only financial statements.
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CUB ELECPARTS INC.
Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars , Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

2021 2020
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Profit before tax $ 630,362 282,892
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):
Depreciation expense 96,690 88,086
Amortization expense 13,515 9,884
Expected credit losses (Reversal gains) 35,069 (461)
Interest expense 22,602 17,036
Interest income (3,397) (4,243)
Share-based payments 30,033 4,861
Write-down, disposal, and obsolescence losses of inventory 20,506 12,401
Share of profit (loss) of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for
using equity method 4,629 (11,554)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plan and equipment 340 149
Gains on disposals of intangible assets (233) -
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss) 219,754 116,159
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Net changes in operating assets:
(Increase) decrease in notes receivable (5,241) 217
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (including related parties) (259,861) 469,954
Decrease (increase) in other receivables (including related parties) 8,812 (2,094)
Increase in inventories (147,874) (88,146)
Decrease (increase) in other current assets 4,313 (15,429)
Net changes in operating assets (399.851) 364,502
Net changes in operating liabilities:
Increase in contract liabilities 5,871 10,111
Increase in accounts payable (including related parties) 80,542 10,890
Increase (decrease) in other payables (including related parties) 27,087 (16,519)
(Decrease) increase in other current liabilities (9,855) 11,680
Decrease in defined benefit liabilities (377) (361)
Net changes in operating liabilities 103,268 15,801
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities (296.,583) 380,303
Adjustments: (76.829) 496,462
Cash inflows generated from operations 553,533 779,354
Interest received 3,397 4,243
Interest paid (22,602) (17,036)
Income taxes paid (33,787) (112.444)
Net cash flows from operating activities 500,541 654,117
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method (1,067,919) (440,980)
Dividends received 1,046 2,485
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (77,119) (71,632)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,001 7,767
Increase in prepayments for plants and equipments (58,870) (42,126)
Decrease in restricted assets 55,400 -
Acquisition of intangible assets (26,408) (15,512)
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets 239 -
Decrease (increase) in receivables of loans from related parties 280,000 (200,000)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (892,630) (759,998)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Increase in short-term borrowings 8,410,000 9,546,500
Decrease in short-term borrowings (7,720,000) (9,306,500)
Proceeds in long-term borrowings (781,667) 1,480,000
Repayments of long-term borrowings 800,000 (560,000)
Repayments of lease liabilities (874) (722)
Cash dividends paid (146,300) (835,184)
Decrease in guarantee deposits received (6) -
Payments to acquire treasury shares - (431,160)
Net cash inflows (outflows) form financing activities 561,153 (107,066)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 169,064 (212,947)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 732,605 945,552
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 901,669 732,605

See accompanying notes to parent company only financial statements.
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Representation Letter

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of CUB ELECPARTS INC. as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2021 under the Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports,
Consolidated Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises are the same as
those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with the International Financial
Reporting Standard No. 10, “ Consolidated Financial Statements” endorsed by the Financial Supervisory
Commission of the Republic of China. In addition, the information required to be disclosed in the combined
financial statements is included in the consolidated financial statements. Consequently, CUB ELECPARTS
INC. and its subsidiaries do not prepare a separate set of combined financial statements.

Hereby declare

Company name: CUB ELECPARTS INC.
Chairman: YU,SAN-CHUAN
Date: March 8, 2022
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of CUB ELECPARTS INC.:
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CUB ELECPARTS INC. and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021 and
2020, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), International Accounting Standards (“IASs”), Interpretations developed by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) or the former Standing Interpretations
Committee (“SIC”) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of
China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Certified Public Accountants Code of Professional Ethics in Republic of China (““the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. Based on our judgment, the key audit matters that should be
disclosed in this report are as follows:

1. Revenue recognition

Please refer to note 4(p) “Revenue recognition” for the accounting policy on revenue recognition; note 5(c)
for details on accounting judgment and major sources of the estimation uncertainty; note 6(y) “Revenues
from contracts with customers”for revenue recognition of contract.

30



Description of key audit matter:

Revenue is the key performance indicator to evaluate the performance by the investors and management.
Since the revenue is recognized based on each sale order and contract terms to be identified and because the
Group is devoted to developing a new distributor, the timing and amount of revenue recognition have a
significant impact on the financial statement. Therefore, the test for revenue recognition is one of the
important assessment items performed by the accountants for the purpose of auditing the financial statements
of the Group.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

The principal audit procedures for the above key audit matters by the accountant include testing the controls
surrounding revenue recognition; Analyzing there is any significant abnormality in a change in customers
between the current year and the prior year; sampling the top ten customers, and reviewing the contracts and
sales orders to evaluate the influence on revenue recognition and assess the accounting treatment of related
contracts is applied appropriately; performing a sample test on sales transactions that took place before and
after the balance sheet date, reviewing the relevant documents, and assessing the accuracy of the timing of
revenue recognition.

2. Assessment of accounts receivable impairment

Please refer to Note 4(g) “Financial Instruments” for accounting policy of assessment of accounts receivable
impairment, Note 5(a) for accounting assumption, judgments and estimation uncertainty of assessment of
accounts receivable impairment, and Note 6(d) for the disclosure of assessment of accounts receivable.

Description of key audit matter:

The Group's accounts receivable are mainly automobile component customers and are concentrated on
certain specific customers. The impairment loss of accounts receivable assessment is based on management's
subjective judgment. Thus, the assessment of accounts receivable impairment is one of the most important
evaluations in performing our audit procedures.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

The principal audit procedures for the above key audit matters by the accountant include analyzing the aging
of accounts receivable; sampling and reviewing the relevant documents as well as calculating the accuracy of
the aging of accounts receivable; understanding and evaluating the management’s consideration relating to
overdue receivables, considering the receipt of cash after the year?end, and understanding the possibility of
remaining receivables collection. In addition, the reasonableness of the provision for impairment losses is
understood and assessed based on the customer's historical receipt status, industrial economic condition, and
the concentration of the credit risk.

3.Assessment of goodwill impairment

Please refer to Note 4(n) “ Impairment of non?financial assets” for accounting policies, Note 5(b) for
accounting assumptions, judgments and estimation uncertainty of assessment of goodwill impairment, and
Note 6(m) for the intangible assets.

Description of key audit matter:

The Group's goodwill arising from the acquisition is significant. The assessment process of goodwill
impairment requires identifying the cash-generating unit and the estimation of the future cash flow of the
operation to determine the recoverable amount. We list the assessment as one of our key audit matters
because it is significant uncertainty and contains the significant subjective judgment of the management.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit:

The principal audit procedures for the above key audit matters by the accountant include: assessing whether
the cash-generating unit and its related tested assets that the management has identified to impair show
possible signs of impairment and further understanding and testing the evaluation models and key
assumptions such as future cash flow projections, use period and a weighted average cost of capital that the
management use in the impairment test, and assessing the accuracy of previous management forecasts; and
carrying out sensitivity analysis of results. In addition to the above assessment process, reviewing and
assessing the reasonability of assumptions through the report of the assessment of impairment loss of
goodwill provided by the evaluation expert; evaluating the qualifications and independence of the evaluator,
and assessing whether the accounting policies for goodwill impairment test and other relevant information
have been appropriately disclosed.

Other Matter

CUB ELECPARTS INC. has additionally prepared its parent company only financial statements as of and for
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, on which we have issued an unmodified audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the
IFRS, IAS, IFRIC, SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the
Republic of China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including members of the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Cheng Hsueh, Chen and
Tsu-Hsin, Chang.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 8, 2022

Notes to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated statement of financial position,
financial performance and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of
China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are
those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese

version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English
and Chinese language independent auditors’ report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars , Except for Earnings Per Common Share)
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese)

CUB ELECPARTS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Operating revenues (Note 6(y))
Operating costs (Notes 6(e), (), (t), (z), and 7)
Gross profit
Operating expenses (Notes 6(m), (t), and (z))
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Impairment loss determined in accordance with IFRS 9 (Note 6(d))

Operating income
Non-operating income and expenses: (Note 6(aa))
Interest income
Other income
Other gains and losses
Finance costs (note 6(r))
Share of profit (loss) of associates and joint ventures accounted for
using equity method (Note 6(g))

Profit before income tax
Income tax expenses (Note 6(u))
Net profit
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Gains (losses) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (Note 6(t))
Unrealized losses from investments in equity instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income
that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income

that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share (NT dollar) (note 6(t))
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2021 2020
Amount % Amount %
$ 4,080,435 100 3,340,199 100
2.409.425 59 2,067,788 62
1,671,010 41 1,272,411 38
286,243 7 254,612 8
250,860 6 213,009 6
506,176 12 417,454 12
35,069 1 968 -
1,078,348 26 886,043 26
592,662 15 386,368 12
4,460 - 8,556 -
60,652 1 22,309 1
(39,498) (1) 91,121) 3)
(32,076) (1) (24,379) (1)
(3,693) - (9,230) -
(10,155) (D) (93,865) 3
582,507 14 292,503 9
94,819 3 42,332 1
487,688 11 250,171 8
1,127 - (894) -
- - 571 -
1,127 - (323) -
(8,328) - 11,304 -
(8,328) - 11,304 -
(7,201) - 10,981 -
$ 480,487 11 261,152 8
$ 515,928 12 244,534 8
(28.,240) (D) 5,637 -
$ 487.688 11 250,171 8
$ 508,974 12 255,930 8
(28,487) (1) 5,222 -
$ 480,487 11 261,152 8
S 4.23 2.03
S 4.23 2.03
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(English Translation of C lidated Fi ial Stat ts and Report Originally Issued in Chinese)
CUB ELECPARTS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2021 2020
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Profit (loss) before tax $ 582,507 292,503
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):
Depreciation expense 192,409 161,697
Amortization expense 43,723 25,699
Impairment loss determined in accordance with IFRS 9 35,069 968
Interest expense 32,076 24,379
Interest income (4,460) (8,556)
Share-based payments 30,785 4,861
The losses of inventory write-down, disposal, and obsolescence 33,162 16,743
Share of loss of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method 3,693 9,230
Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment (471) 170
Gains on disposals of intangible assets (233) -
Gains on disposals of investments (1,707) -
Gain on lease modifications (6) -
Total adjustment 364,040 235,191
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Changes in operating assets:
Decrease (increase) in contract assets 186,756 (97,567)
Increase in notes receivable (64,527) (60,610)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (including related parties) (275,882) 31,893
Drease (increase) in other receivables (including related parties) 36,183 (2,099)
Increase in inventories (279,636) (85,329)
Decrease (increase) in other current assets 258,132 (234,129)
Net changes in operating assets (138,974) (447.841)
Changes in operating liabilities:
Increase in contract liabilities 139,875 14,449
Increase in notes payable 109 -
(Drease) increase in accounts payable (including related parties) (47,399) 210,945
(Drease) increase in other payables (including related parties) (5,426) 47,338
Increase in provisions 3,370 21,602
(Drease) increase in other current liabilities (67,686) 14,351
Decrease in defined benefit liabilities (1.644) (480)
Net changes in operating liabilities 21,199 308.205
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities (117,775) (139,636)
Total adjustments 246,265 95.555
Cash inflows generated from operations 828,772 388,058
Interest received 5,266 9,679
Interest paid (32,336) (24,143)
Income taxes paid (67.471) (119,065)
Net cash flows from operating activities 734,231 254,529
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Acquisition of subsidiaries (deducted the cash received) (55,979) -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (563,117) (151,793)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 15,229 6,613
Acquisition of intangible assets (48,702) (27,195)
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets 239 -
Acquisition of investment properties (135) (3,510)
Decrease in other financial assets 43,183 -
Increase in refundable deposits (101,583) (20,502)
Increase in prepayment for equipment (20.179) (89,308)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (731,044) (285,695)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Increase in short-term borrowings 9,593,192 11,224,068
Decrease in short-term borrowings (8,899,828) (11,240,057)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 845,000 1,639,933
Repayments of long-term borrowings (796,668) (560,000)
Increase (decrease) in guarantee deposits received (901) 1,626
Repayments of lease liabilities (11,526) (9,559)
Cash dividends paid (146,748) (836,249)
Issuance of shares for cash 516,635 39,021
Payments to acquire treasury shares - (431,160)
Net cash inflows (outflows) form financing activities 1,099.156 (172,377)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 4,680 6,454
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,107,023 (197,089)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1,194,110 1,391.199
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 2,301,133 1,194,110

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Attachment 5

Unit: NTD $

Item

Amount

Undistributed retained earnings at the beginning of the
period

Add: Net profits after tax for the year

Less: Provisions of special reserve set aside with deductions
from equity

Add: Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Less: Provision of 10% of legal reserve

Available-for-distribution earnings

Distributable items:

Shareholders' bonuses - cash dividends (NT$1 per share)
Shareholders' bonuses - stock dividends (NT$1 per share)

Undistributed retained earnings at the end of the period

$ 319,836,419

515,927,070

8,150,287

1,198,607
51,712,568

$ 777,099,241

121,916,670
121,916,660

$ 533,265,911

Note: Distributed up to NT$1, with an amount less than NT$! rounded off.

Note 1: Priority is given to the 2021 earnings for distribution

i

=
=

Chairperson: Yu, Shan-Chuan |

|

=
=

President, Yu, Shan-Chuan |

|

Accounting Officer: Liu, Wan-Hua 5’]
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CUB ELECPARTS INC.
Comparison of the amended provisions of the Regulations for Issuance and Subscription

Attachment 6

of Employee Stock Options
Before amendment After amendment Description of
amendment
III.  Holder of stock option warrants III.  Holder of stock option warrants | Amended in
(1) All full-time employees of the (1) All full-time employees of | accordance

Company and its domestic and the Company and its with the FSC's
foreign controlled or domestic and foreign May 2021
subordinate companies only controlled or subordinate Employee
(the definition of controlled or companies only (the Stock Option
subordinate companies are in definition of controlled or Warrants
accordance with FSC’s letter subordinate companies are | Question and
Jin-Guan-Zheng-Fa-Zi No. in accordance with FSC’s Answer
1070121068 dated December letter Jin-Guan-Zheng-Fa-Zi | Series.

2)

3)

27, 2018). The base date of
eligibility for stock options is
determined by the Chairperson
of the Board of Directors.

The employees and the number
of stock options they receive
will be granted with reference
to factors such as years of
service, rank, work
performance, overall
contribution or special
contribution, past and expected
future contribution to the
Company as a whole or future
development potential, etc.
After approval by the
Chairperson, with the consent
of the Remuneration
Committee and the presence of
at least two-thirds of the Board
of Directors and the consent of
more than one-half of the
directors present, the stock
option warrants can be granted.
The cumulative number of
shares subscribable granted to a
single warrant holder by the
Company pursuant to Article
60-9 of the Regulations
Governing the Offering and
Issuance of Securities by
Securities Issuers: Where an
issuer issues employee stock
option warrants under Article
56-1, Paragraph 1, the

No. 1070121068 dated
December 27, 2018). The
base date of eligibility for
stock options is determined
by the Chairperson of the
Board of Directors.

(2) The employees and the
number of stock options
they receive will be granted
with reference to factors
such as years of service,
rank, work performance,
overall contribution or
special contribution, past
and expected future
contribution to the
Company as a whole or
future development
potential, etc. After
approval by the
Chairperson, with-the-

follow the below
procedures:

(A) Grants to the Company's
managerial officers or
employees who are also
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cumulative number of shares
subscribable by a single
warrant holder of the employee
stock warrants, in combination
with the cumulative number of
new employee restricted stock
obtained by the single warrant
holder, may not exceed 0.3
percent of the issuer’s total
issued shares. And the above, in
combination with the
cumulative number of shares
subscribable by the single
warrant holder of employee
stock warrants issued by an
issuer under Article 56,
Paragraph 1, may not exceed 1
percent of the issuer’s total
issued shares.

directors of the Company
shall be approved by the
Remuneration Committee
of the Company before
submitting to the
Company's Board of
Directors for resolution. If
the controlled or
subordinate company is a
listed company on TWSE
or TPEx or the emerging
market, and if the
individual has a
concurrent position as a
managerial officer of the
Company or a director of
the Company, resolutions
of the Remuneration
Committee of the
Company and the
controlled or subordinate
company and the Board of
Directors of the Company
shall be made; if the
managerial officer is
working in the controlled
or subordinate company
and is not also a
managerial officer of the
Company or does not have
any concurrent position,
resolutions of the
Remuneration Committee
of the controlled or
subordinate company and
the Board of Directors of
the Company shall be
required.

(B) For employees of the
Company, controlled and
subordinate companies
other than those
mentioned in (1), the
approval of the Audit
Committee of the
Company shall be
obtained before a
resolution of the Board of
Directors of the Company
is made.

1.5.1. (IIT) The cumulative
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number of shares
subscribable granted
to a single warrant
holder by the
Company pursuant
to Article 60-9 of the
Regulations
Governing the
Offering and
Issuance of
Securities by
Securities Issuers:
Where an issuer
issues employee
stock option
warrants under
Article 56-1,
Paragraph 1, the
cumulative number
of shares
subscribable by a
single warrant
holder of the
employee stock
warrants, in
combination with
the cumulative
number of new
employee restricted
stock obtained by
the single warrant
holder, may not
exceed 0.3 percent
of the issuer’s total
issued shares. And
the above, in
combination with
the cumulative

number of shares
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subscribable by the
single warrant
holder of employee
stock warrants
issued by an issuer
under Article 56,
Paragraph 1, may
not exceed 1 percent
of the issuer’s total

1ssued shares.

2)

In the event of a reduction in the
number of common shares not due
to the cancellation of treasury
stock, the adjusted share option
price and the adjusted share option
percentage shall be calculated
according to the following formula,
and a letter shall be sent to TWSE
or TPEx to announce the
adjustment on the base date of the
capital reduction:

In case of capital reduction to make
up for the loss:

Subscription price before
adjustment = Subscription price
after adjustment x (number of
issued shares before capital
reduction / number of issued shares
after capital reduction)

In case of cash capital reduction
Subscription price after adjustment
= (Subscription price before
adjustment - cash refund per share)
x (number of shares issued before
the capital reduction / number of
shares issued after the capital
reduction)

(2) In the event of a reduction in the

number of common shares not due
to the cancellation of treasury
stock, the adjusted share option
price and the adjusted share option
percentage shall be calculated
according to the following formula,
and a letter shall be sent to TWSE
or TPEx to announce the
adjustment on the base date of the
capital reduction. If the reduction
in the number of common shares
is due to a change in the par
value of the stock, the adjustment
is made on the basis date of the
new share exchange.

In case of capital reduction to make
up for the loss:

Subscription price before
adjustment = Subscription price
after adjustment x (number of
issued shares before capital
reduction / number of issued shares
after capital reduction)

In case of cash capital reduction
Subscription price after adjustment
= (Subscription price before
adjustment - cash refund per share)
X (number of shares issued before
the capital reduction / number of
shares issued after the capital
reduction)

In case of change in the par value
of stock
Subscription price after

Amended in
accordance
with the FSC's
May 2021
Employee
Stock Option
Warrants
Question and
Answer
Series.
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adjustment = Subscription price
before adjustment X (number of
common shares issued before the
change in stock par value /
number of common shares issued
after the change in stock par
value)
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CUB ELECPARTS INC.

Attachment &

Comparison of the amended provisions of the "Regulations for Acquisition or Disposal of

Assets”
Before amendment After amendment Description
of
amendment
5.9.1.5. Acquisition or disposal by the | 5.9.1.5. Acquisition or disposal by | In
Company in the construction business | the Company in the construction | compliance
of real estate or right-of-use assets | business of real estate or right-of-use | with the
thereof for construction wuse, and | assets thereof for construction use, and | provisions
furthermore the transaction counterparty | furthermore the transaction | of Article
is not a related party, and the transaction | counterparty is not a related party, and | 31,
amount does not reach NT$500 million; | the transaction amount dees—net | Paragraph 5
among such cases, if the public| reaches NT$500 million; among such | of the
company has paid-in capital of NT$10 | cases, if the public company has | Regulations
billion or more, and it is disposing of | paid-in capital of NT$10 billion or | Governing
real estate from a completed | more, and it is disposing of real estate | the
construction project that it constructed | from a completed construction project | Acquisition
itself, and furthermore the transaction| that it constructed itself, and | and
counterparty is not a related party, then | furthermore the transaction | Disposal of
the threshold shall be a transaction| counterparty is not a related party, | Assets by
amount reaching NT$1 billion or more. then the threshold shall be a | Public
transaction amount reaching NT$1 | Companies
billion or more. issued by
the FSC.
5.9.1.6. Where land is acquired under | 5.9.1.6. Where land 1is acquired | In
an arrangement on engaging others | under an arrangement on engaging | compliance
to build on the Company's own | others to build on the Company's own | with the
land, engaging others to build on | land, engaging others to build on | provisions
rented land, joint construction and | rented land, joint construction and | of Article
allocation of housing units, joint | allocation of housing units, joint| 31,
construction and allocation of | construction and allocation of | Paragraph 6
ownership percentages, or joint| ownership percentages, or joint | of the
construction and separate sale, and | construction and separate sale, and | Regulations
furthermore the transaction | furthermore the transaction | Governing
counterparty is not a related party, | counterparty is not a related party, and | the
and the amount the Company | the amount the Company expects to | Acquisition
expects to invest in the transaction | invest in the transaction dees—net | and
does not reach NT$500 million. reaches NT$500 million. Disposal of
Assets by
Public
Companies
issued by
the FSC.
5.13.1 After being approved by the|5.13.1 The Regulations shall be |In
Board of Directors, the Regulations approved by the—Beard—ef | compliance
will be sent to each supervisor and Direetors;-sent-to-each-superviser | with the
submitted to the shareholders' and-appreved-by-at least one-half | provisions
meeting  for  approval  before of all members of the Audit | of Article 6,
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implementation, and the same applies
to any amendment. If any director
expresses dissent and it is contained
in the minutes or a written statement,
the Company shall submit the
director's dissenting opinion to each
supervisor.

Committee, and submitted to the
Board of Directors for resolution
and then submitted to the
shareholders' meeting for approval
before implementation, and the
same applies to any amendment. If
any director expresses dissent and it
is contained in the minutes or a
written statement, the Company
shall submit the director's dissenting
opinion to each supervisor and
Audit Committee member.

Paragraph 3
of the
Regulations
Governing
the
Acquisition
and
Disposal of
Assets by
Public
Companies
issued by
the FSC.
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CUB ELECPARTS INC.

Attachment &

Comparison of amended provisions of the Rules of Procedure for Shareholders’ Meetings

Before amendment

After amendment

Remarks

5.1The Company’s rules of
procedure for shareholders'
meetings shall be in accordance
with the Rules unless otherwise
provided by law or the Articles of
Incorporation.

5.1The Company’s rules of
procedure for shareholders'
meetings shall be in accordance
with the Rules unless otherwise
provided by law or the Articles of
Incorporation and should be
announced.

The foregoing announcement shall
be made on the information
reporting website designated by the
FSC.

5.4The shareholders shall be
notified of the convening of the
regular shareholders' meeting by
notice of the shareholders'
meeting 20 days in advance; the
shareholders shall be notified of
the convening of the special
shareholders' meeting by notice
of the shareholders' meeting 10
days in advance. After the public
offering of the Company’s shares,
the Company shall prepare a
handbook for the shareholders'
meeting and notify the
shareholders by sending a notice
of the shareholders' meeting 30
days in advance. The meeting
handbook and supplementary
materials should be made
available to shareholders at any
time 15 days before the
shareholders' meeting, and are
exhibited on the premises of the
Company and the professional
stock affairs agency appointed by
the Company, and are distributed
on-site at the shareholders'
meeting; shareholders shall be
notified 15 days in advance of the
convening of the special
shareholders’ meeting, and for
shareholders holding less than
1,000 registered shares, the
meeting shall be announced by
means of a public post on the

5.4 The shareholders shall be
notified of the convening of the
regular shareholders' meeting by
notice of the shareholders' meeting
230 days in advance; the
shareholders shall be notified of the
convening of the special
shareholders' meeting by notice of
the shareholders' meeting 10 days in
advance. After the public offering
of the Company’s shares, the
Company shall prepare a handbook
for the shareholders' meeting and
notify the shareholders by sending a
notice of the shareholders' meeting
30 days in advance. The meeting
handbook and supplementary
materials should be made available
to shareholders at any time 15 days
before the shareholders' meeting,
and are exhibited on the premises of
the Company and the professional
stock affairs agency appointed by
the Company, and are distributed
on-site at the shareholders' meeting;
shareholders shall be notified 15
days in advance of the convening of
the special shareholders’ meeting,
and for shareholders holding less
than 1,000 registered shares, the
meeting shall be announced by
means of a public post on the
Market Observation Post System 15
days in advance. The Company
shall send the shareholders' meeting

In accordance with the
FSC’s letter
Jin-Guan-Zheng-Jiao-Zi
No. 1100365384, the
goal is to strengthen the
operation of the
shareholders' meeting,
help investors know the
content of the resolutions
of the shareholders'
meeting and to disclose
the reporting schedule in
advance.
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Market Observation Post System
15 days in advance. The causes
or subjects of a meeting of
shareholders to be convened shall
be indicated in the individual
notice to be given to shareholders
and in the announcement; and the
notice may, as an alternative, be
given by means of electronic
transmission, after obtaining
prior consent from the
recipient(s) thereof. Matters
related to election or dismissal of
directors, change of articles of
incorporation, dissolution,
merger, or split of the Company,
or matters under Article 185,
Paragraph 1 of the Company Act,
Article 26-1 and 43-6 of the
Securities and Exchange Act,
Article 50-1 and Article 60-2 of
the Regulations Governing the
Offering and Issuance of
Securities by Securities Issuers,
shall be listed and described in
the causes and subjects for the
convening of the meeting, and
shall not be proposed as an
extempore motion.

handbook and supplementary
information to the designated
information reporting website as
electronic files no later than 21 days
before the regular shareholders'
meeting or 15 days before the
special shareholders' meeting.
However, if the Company has a
paid-in capital of NT$10 billion or
more as of the end of the most
recent fiscal year, or if the
shareholding of foreign and
Mainland shareholders as recorded
in the shareholder roster for the
regular shareholders’ meeting in the
most recent fiscal year has reached
30% or more, the electronic
transmission of the aforementioned
electronic file shall be completed 30
days before the convening of the
regular shareholders' meeting. The
causes or subjects of a meeting of
shareholders to be convened shall
be indicated in the individual notice
to be given to shareholders and in
the announcement; and the notice
may, as an alternative, be given by
means of electronic transmission,
after obtaining prior consent from
the recipient(s) thereof. Matters
related to election or dismissal of
directors, change of articles of
incorporation, dissolution, merger,
or split of the Company, or matters
under Article 185, Paragraph 1 of
the Company Act, Article 26-1 and
43-6 of the Securities and Exchange
Act, Article 50-1 and Article 60-2
of the Regulations Governing the
Offering and Issuance of Securities
by Securities Issuers, shall be listed
and described in the causes and
subjects for the convening of the
meeting, and shall not be proposed
as an extempore motion.
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CUB ELECPARTS INC.
Comparison of the amended provisions of the Regulations for Endorsement and

Attachment 9

Guarantee

Before amendment After amendment Remarks
1.1.1. The total amount of the 1.1.3.  The total amount of the | Amended in

endorsement and guarantee endorsement and aqcordance

shall not exceed 50% of the guarantee shall not exceed giglug,lse

net worth of the Company 100% of the net worth of operational

(inclusive). the Company (inclusive). | development
1.1.2. For a single enterprise, up to 1.1.4. For a single enterprise, up plar} and

20% of the Company's net to 100% of the Company's Ezesilr;ess

worth. The Chairperson 1is
authorized to decide on the
amount up to 15% of the net
worth of the Company

(inclusive).

The

Chairperson is authorized

net worth.
to decide on the amount
up to 15% of the net worth
of the

(inclusive).

Company
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Concurrent positions held by the directors and independent directors in other companies

Name Title Concurrent positions in other companies

Director, DEPO INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD.
(Kunshan)

Director, Jiangsu Chenyang Traffic
Equipment Limited Company

Candidate of Director, CUB Director, DEPO INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD.
ELECPARTS INC. (Danyang)

Supervisor, Ningbo Depo Traftic Facilities
Co., Ltd.

Chairperson, DEPO AUTO PARTS IND.
CO., LTD.

Hsieh, Hsiu-Chi

Chairperson, LANDWIN ELECTRONIC
CORPORATION

Chairperson, LANDWIN ELECTRONIC
CORPORATION (Shenzhen)

Executive director, Hu Lane Electronics
(Nanjing)

Director, Hu Lane Electronics (Shenzhen)
Director, Hu Lane Electronics (Dongguan)
Executive director, DongGuan Hulane
PuGuang Trading Co.,Ltd.

Chairperson, Hu Lane Associate Inc.

Candidate of Director, CUB

Chang Tzu-Hsiung ELECPARTS INC.

Chairperson, CUB ELECPARTS
INC.(Shanghai)

Representative of Jun Candidate of Director, CUB Cha@rerson, I™ Eng‘ine Components Inc.
Chang Investment Co., ELECPARTS INC Chairperson and President, [ITM

Ltd.: Yu, Shan-Chuan ' AUTOPARTS INTERNATIONAL INC.
Chairperson, 3S System Technology Inc.
Chairperson, CUBTEK INC.
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Appendix 1

Regulations for Issuance and Subscription of Employee Stock Options [before
amendment]

L Purpose of Issuance
In order to attract and retain the talents needed by the Company and to motivate employees and
promote their alignment with the Company, so as to jointly increase the interests of the Company
and its shareholders, the Company has established the Regulations for Issuance and Subscription
of Employee Stock Options in accordance with Article 28-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act
and the "Regulations for Issuance and Subscription of Employee Stock Options" issued by the

FSC and other relevant regulations.

II.  Period of issuance
The period of issuance of the Company's employee stock options is scheduled to be one year from
the date of the effective notification of the FSC (hereinafter referred to as the competent authority),
and will be issued in one or several batches depending on the actual needs. The actual issue date is
authorized to be determined by the Chairperson.

III.  Holder of stock option warrants

(4) All full-time employees of the Company and its domestic and foreign controlled or
subordinate companies only (the definition of controlled or subordinate companies are in
accordance with FSC’s letter Jin-Guan-Zheng-Fa-Zi No. 1070121068 dated December 27,
2018). The base date of eligibility for stock options is determined by the Chairperson of the
Board of Directors.

(5) The employees and the number of stock options they receive will be granted with reference
to factors such as years of service, rank, work performance, overall contribution or special
contribution, past and expected future contribution to the Company as a whole or future
development potential, etc. After approval by the Chairperson, with the consent of the
Remuneration Committee and the presence of at least two-thirds of the Board of Directors
and the consent of more than one-half of the directors present, the stock option warrants can
be granted.

(6) The cumulative number of shares subscribable granted to a single warrant holder by the
Company pursuant to Article 60-9 of the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance
of Securities by Securities Issuers: Where an issuer issues employee stock option warrants
under Article 56-1, Paragraph 1, the cumulative number of shares subscribable by a single
warrant holder of the employee stock warrants, in combination with the cumulative number
of new employee restricted stock obtained by the single warrant holder, may not exceed 0.3
percent of the issuer’s total issued shares. And the above, in combination with the cumulative
number of shares subscribable by the single warrant holder of employee stock warrants
issued by an issuer under Article 56, Paragraph 1, may not exceed 1 percent of the issuer’s
total issued shares.

IV. Total number issued

The total number issued was 800,000 units, with 1 share per unit of stock option warrants. The

total number of new shares of common stock to be issued upon exercise of stock options is

800,000 shares.

V.  Criteria of stock options subscription
D Subscription price: The closing price of the Company's common stock on the date of
issuance is used as the subscription price.
(1) Rights period:

(1) The stock option holder may exercise the stock option in accordance with the Regulations
two years after the employee stock option warrant granted to him or her. The duration of
stock option warrant is four years, and it is not transferable, except for inheritance. After
the expiration of the stock option duration, the unexercised stock option is deemed to
have abstained, and the stock option holder shall not assert its stock option right again.
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Period of granting stock option warrant Cumulative percentage of exercisable

stock options
At the expiration of 2 years 40%

At the expiration of 3 years 100%

(2) In the event of a breach of the labor contract or work rules by employees after the
Company has granted stock options to them, the Company has the right to withdraw and
cancel the stock options for which the stock options have not yet been exercised.

(3) The Board of Directors may adjust the period and percentage of the aforementioned
rights depending on the circumstances of each issuance.

(I1I) Type of stock options for subscription: Shares of the Company's common stock.
Iv) If the stock option holder has any of the following conditions, he or she shall be treated as
follows during the duration of the stock option warrant:
1. Termination from employment or dismissal or layoff in accordance with the Labor
Standards Act
The employee who has exercised the stock options can exercise the stock option right
within one month from the date of termination. The stock option warrant that has not
been exercised is regarded as a waiver of stock option right on the date of termination.
2. Leave without pay

(1) In accordance with the government regulations and in case of personal major illness,
major family changes, overseas study, etc., the stock option warrant with exercised
rights can be exercised within one month from the starting date of the leave without
pay.

(2) For the above overdue unexercised warrant, the stock option exercise right shall be
suspended and deferred until reinstatement; the stock option warrant with
unexercised right shall be reinstated after the reinstatement, but in the case of the
first item of Article 8, the stock option exercise period shall be deferred in the order
of the duration of the stock option, but the stock option exercise period shall be
deferred in the order of the duration of the leave without pay, and shall be limited to
the duration of the stock option warrant.

3. Retirement
The stock options granted can be exercised in full upon retirement. Except that the
stock options shall be exercised after two years from the date of grant, the restriction
about the percentage of stock options that can be exercised after the expiration
specified in the second Paragraph of this Article shall not apply. However, the stock
options shall be exercised within six months from the date of retirement or the
expiration of two years from the granting of the stock options, whichever is later, and
shall remain limited to the duration of the stock options.

4. General death
In the event of the death of an employee with exercised rights, the legal successor shall
exercise the stock option within one year from the date of death of the employee, and
if the right is not exercised within the aforementioned period, it shall be deemed as
giving up its stock option rights. The stock option certificate without exercise right
shall lose the qualification of the stock option holder on the date of death and no
longer enjoy the right of the Regulations.

5. Disability or death by occupational disaster

(1) If an employee is physically disabled due to an occupational disaster and cannot
continue to work, he or she can exercise all the stock option rights when leaving the
job. Except that the stock options shall be exercised after two years from the date of
grant, the restriction about the percentage of stock options that can be exercised
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after the expiration specified in the second Paragraph of this Article shall not apply.
However, the stock options shall be exercised within 1 year from the date of
termination or the expiration of two years from the granting of the stock options,
whichever is later, and shall remain limited to the duration of the stock options.

(2) In the event of the death of an employee due to an occupational disaster, his or her
successor can exercise all the stock option rights upon the death Except that the
stock options shall be exercised after two years from the date of grant, the
restriction about the percentage of stock options that can be exercised after the
expiration specified in the second Paragraph of this Article shall not apply. However,
the stock options shall be exercised within 1 year from the date of death or the
expiration of two years from the granting of the stock options, whichever is later,
and shall remain limited to the duration of the stock options.

6. Transfer to aftiliates
Employees who are transferred to the Company's affiliates for the Company's
operation and approved by the President are not affected by the transfer of their rights
and obligations under the granted stock options.

7. If the stock option holder or his or her successor fails to exercise the stock options
within the above period, it is considered as a waiver of the stock option right.

(V) Handling of the waiver of stock options
The Company will cancel and not issue the stock options that have been renounced.

VI. Performance method
The Company will issue new shares for delivery.
VII. Adjustment of subscription price
(I) After the issuance of the warrant, except for the issuance of various securities with common

stock conversion rights or stock options in exchange for common shares or the issuance of new
shares for employee profit sharing remuneration, in the event of changes in common shares
(including private placement), i.e., cash capital increase, capitalization of earnings,
capitalization of capital surplus, merger, issuance of new shares due to transfer of shares of
other companies, stock split, and cash capital increase for the issuance of overseas depositary
receipts, the subscription price shall be adjusted according to the following formula (rounded to
the nearest NT$0.1)

Subscription price after adjustment = Subscription price before adjustment x [(number of
issued shares + (each new share payment amount x number of new shares issued) + current
price per share)] + (number of issued shares + number of new shares issued)

(1) The number of shares issued refers to the total number of shares of common stock issued,
excluding the number of shares of preferred stock, bond conversion certificates and
employee stock option warrants, and shall be reduced by the number of shares of treasury
stock repurchased by the Company but not yet cancelled or transferred.

(2) The "amount paid per share" shall be zero in the case of stock dividends or stock split. If
the Company merges with another company and is the surviving company, the "amount
paid per share" shall be the simple arithmetic average of the closing prices of the
Company's common shares for 30 consecutive business days from the 45th business day
prior to the date of the merger. If the Company issues new shares for the transfer of shares
of another company, the amount shall be the simple arithmetic average of the closing
prices of the Company's common shares for the 30 consecutive business days immediately
preceding the 45th business day before the date of completion of the ownership transfer of
the transferred shares.
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(3) The calculation of subscription price after adjustment is rounded to the nearest NT$0.1.
(4) In case the subscription price after adjustment is higher than the subscription price before
adjustment, no adjustment will be made.

(IT) In the event of a reduction in the number of common shares not due to the cancellation of

treasury stock, the adjusted share option price and the adjusted share option percentage shall be
calculated according to the following formula, and a letter shall be sent to TWSE or TPEx to
announce the adjustment on the base date of the capital reduction:

In case of capital reduction to make up for the loss:
Subscription price before adjustment = Subscription price after adjustment x (number of issued
shares before capital reduction / number of issued shares after capital reduction)

In case of cash capital reduction

Subscription price after adjustment = (Subscription price before adjustment - cash refund per
share) x (number of shares issued before the capital reduction / number of shares issued after
the capital reduction)

(IIT) After the issuance of employee stock option warrants, if the Company pays cash dividends on

common stock, the Company shall adjust the subscription price per unit on the ex-dividend
date according to the following formula (rounded to the nearest NT$0.1):

Subscription price after adjustment = Subscription price before adjustment x (1 - percentage
of cash dividends per unit to the current price per share)

The above current price per share shall be determined based on the simple arithmetic average
of the closing price of the common shares for the one, three and five business days prior to the
announced ex-dividend date of stock transfer suspension for cash dividend.

VIII. Procedures for exercising stock options

IX.

(D Except for the period of stock transfer suspension in accordance with the law, the stock

option holder may exercise the stock option right in accordance with the Regulations, and
fill out the employee stock subscription application form and submit the application to the
stock affairs agency of the Company or the Company.

(I)  After the stock affairs agency of the Company or the Company accepts the request for

stock subscription, the stock option holder will be notified to pay the stock price to the
designated bank.

(III) After the Company's stock affairs agency has received the full amount of shares, the

number of shares subscribed will be recorded in the Company's shareholder roster and the
certificate of payment of stock options will be issued by the centralized depository and
book-entry services within five business days.

(IV) The certificate of payment of stock options will be listed and traded from the date of

delivery to the stock option holder. If the Company's common shares are legally traded on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange (or Taipei Exchange), the certificate of payment of stock
options will be listed and traded from the date of delivery to the stock optionholders.

(V) The Company shall, at least once a quarter, register with the competent authority the

change in the capital of additional shares issued upon completion of the exercise of the
employee stock options.

Restriction of rights after exercise of stock options
The rights and obligations of the Company's common stock issued for the exercise of stock
options are the same as those of the Company's issued common stock.
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Enforcement rules

(I) The stock option holders shall bear the taxes arising from the certificates of payment or
shares and their transactions for the stock options subscribed hereunder in accordance with
the then current tax laws of the ROC.

(IT) The individual stock option holders will be notified by the Company of the granting, the
number, the exercising of stock option warrants, the payment of stock options, and the
exchange of stock warrants and the related operations and the time of each such operation.

(IIT) In the future, the new shares issued by the Company due to the performance of employee
stock options shall be delivered by book-entry and not printed in physical form, and shall be
exempted from certification in accordance with the Regulations Governing Certification of
Corporate Stock and Bond Issues by Public Companies.

Other important matters

(I) The Regulations shall be effective upon approval by the Board of Directors and approval by
the competent authority. If there is any amendment after approval by the competent authority
prior to the issuance, the amendment shall be made with the attendance of at least two-thirds
of the Board of Directors and the approval of a majority of the directors present. If, in the
course of a review by the competent authority, the competent authority requests an
amendment to the Regulations, the Chairperson of the Board of Directors is authorized to
amend the Regulations in accordance with the request, and then submit it to the Board of
Directors for ratification.

(I) Any matters not covered by the Regulations shall be handled in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations.

Date of establishment and amendment
The Regulations were established on November 9, 2021
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Regulations for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets [before amendment]

1. Purpose: In order to enhance the management of the Company's assets and to serve the purpose of

full public disclosure, the Regulations are established in accordance with the provisions of Article

36-1 of the Securities and Exchange Act and the relevant provisions of the "Regulations Governing

the Acquisition and Disposal of Assets by Public Companies" published by the Securities and

Futures Bureau.

2. Scope: Assets as defined by the competent authorities.

3. Definition:

3.1. Asset:

3.1.1.

3.1.3.
3.1.4.

3.1.5.
3.1.6.

3.1.7.
3.1.8.

3.1.9.

Marketable securities: Including investments in stocks, government bonds, corporate bonds,
financial bonds, securities representing interest in a fund, depositary receipts, call (put)
warrants, beneficial interest securities, and asset-backed securities.

Real estate (including land, houses and buildings, investment property, and construction
enterprise inventory) and equipment.

Memberships.

Intangible assets: Including patents, copyrights, trademarks, franchise rights, and other
intangible assets.

Right-of-use assets.

Creditor’s claims of financial institutions (including receivables, bills purchased and
discounted, loans, and overdue receivables).

Derivatives.

Assets acquired or disposed of in connection with mergers, demergers, acquisitions, or
transfer of shares in accordance with the law.

Other significant assets.

3.2. Derivatives:

Forward contracts, options contracts, futures contracts, leverage contracts, or swap contracts,

whose value is derived from an—asset; specified interest rate, financial instrument price,

commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index,

or other variable er-etherinstruments—ofinterest and—; hybrid contracts combining the above
mstrument contracts; or hybrid contracts containing embedded derivatives or hybrid-eontraets

eontaining structured products. The term "forward contracts" does not include insurance
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3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

3.9.
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contracts, performance contracts, after-sales service contracts, long-term leasing contracts, or
long-term purchase (sales) contracts.

Assets acquired or disposed of in connection with mergers, demergers, acquisitions, or transfer
of shares in accordance with law:

Refers to assets acquired or disposed through mergers, demergers, or acquisitions conducted
under the Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act, Financial Holding Company Act, Financial
Institutions Merger Act and other acts, or to transfer of shares from another company through
issuance of new shares of its own as the consideration therefor (hereinafter "transfer of shares")
under Article 156-3-8)-of the Company Act.

Related party or subsidiary: As defined in the Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

Professional appraiser: Refers to a real estate appraiser or other person duly authorized by law
to engage in the value appraisal of real estate or equipment.

Date of occurrence of the fact:

The earlier of the date of contract signing, the date of payment, the date of settlement of the
transaction, the date of ownership transfer, the date of resolution of the Board of Directors, or
any other date that is sufficient to determine the counterparty and the amount of the transaction.
However, for investors subject to the approval of the competent authority, it should be the
earlier of the preceding dates or the date of receipt of approval from the competent authority.
Investment in Mainland China:

Refers to investments in the mainland China area approved by the Ministry of Economic
Affairs Investment Commission or conducted in accordance with the provisions of the
Regulations Governing Permission for Investment or Technical Cooperation in the Mainland
Area.

Investment professional: Refers to financial holding companies, banks, insurance companies,
bill finance companies, trust enterprises, securities firms operating proprietary trading or
underwriting business, futures commission merchants operating proprietary trading business,
securities investment trust enterprises, securities investment consulting enterprises, and fund
management companies, that are lawfully incorporated and are regulated by the competent
financial authorities of the jurisdiction where they are located.

Securities exchange: "Domestic securities exchange" refers to the Taiwan Stock Exchange

Corporation; "foreign securities exchange" refers to any organized securities exchange market
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that is regulated by the competent securities authorities of the jurisdiction where it is located.

3.10. Business premises of securities firms: Business premises of domestic securities firms refer to
the places where securities firms have set up counters to conduct transactions in accordance
with the Regulations Governing Securities Trading on the Taipei Exchange; business premises
of foreign securities firms refer to the business offices of financial institutions that are under the
control of the foreign securities competent authorities and are allowed to conduct securities
business.

3.11. The "within the preceding year" as mentioned in the Regulations refers to the year preceding
the date of occurrence of the current transaction. Items for which an appraisal report from a
professional appraiser or a CPA's opinion has been obtained need notbe counted toward the
transaction amount.

3.12. The “latest financial statements” as mentioned in the Regulations refer to the financial
statements of the Company that have been audited and attested or reviewed by CPAs prior to
the acquisition or disposal of assets in accordance with the law.

4. Unit of authority and responsibility

4.1. The acquisition, sale, disposal of the Company’s real estate, investment and disposal of
marketable securities shall be handled in accordance with the Company's "Regulations
Governing the Management of Assets", to the extent that they do not violate the provisions
described in Paragraph 5 below.

4.2. When the Company engages in investment in marketable securities, the Company shall follow
the approval authority described in 5.3. procedures for handling investment in marketable
securities below and submit it to the Finance and Accounting Unit for execution.

4.3. The Company's derivative transactions.

4.3.1. Finance unit.

4.3.1.1. Responsible for strategy formulation for the entire Company's foreign exchange
operations.

4.3.1.2. Inresponse to changes in the foreign exchange market, the Finance Department should
collect relevant information regular, judge the trend and risk assessment, be familiar
with financial products and legal regulations, and then consider the Company's foreign
exchange position and prepare an operation strategy plan, and submit it for approval in
accordance with the approval authority as a basis for risk avoidance.

4.3.1.3. Regularly calculate the realized or possible future risk exposure and conduct various

57



Appendix 2

hedging transactions according to the authorized authority.
4.3.2. Accounting unit:

4.3.2.1. The transaction and settlement receipts of derivative transactions entered into by the
finance unit for hedging purposes should be reconciled with the transactions notified by
the finance department, and the related accounting treatment should be performed.

4.3.2.2. The confirmation letter of each transaction is sent to the counterparty and the broker to
ensure the correctness of the transaction and to reconcile the confirmation data with the
existing transaction contracts.

5. Operation contents:

5.1. Determination process for authorized limit

5.1.1.  When acquiring or disposing of real estate, the Company shall make reference to the
announced current value, the assessed value, and the actual transaction price ofthe
neighboring real estate, decide the transaction terms and transaction price, and prepare an
analysis report and submit it to the Chairperson; if the amount is less than NT$20 million,
it shall be submitted to the Chairperson for approval and reported at the coming Boar
meeting; if the amount exceeds NT$20 million, it shall be submitted to the Board of

Directors for approval.

5.1.2.  The acquisition or disposal of equipment shall be carried out by one of the means of price
quotation, comparison, bargaining or tender, and if the amount of which is less than NT$10
million (inclusive), it shall be approved along the hierarchy in accordance with the
authorization method. If the amount exceeds NT$10 million, it shall be approved by the

Chairman and submitted to the Board of Directors for approval.

5.1.3.  With respect to the Company's acquisition or disposal of assets that are subject to the
approval of the Board of Directors under the Company's procedures or other laws or
regulations, if a director expresses dissent and it is contained in the minutes or a written
statement, the Company shall submit the director's dissenting opinion to each supervisor.
Where the position of independent director has been created by the Company in
accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Act, when a transaction
involving the acquisition or disposal of assets is submitted for discussion by the Board of
Directors pursuant to the preceding Paragraph, the Board of Directors shall take into full

consideration each independent director's opinions. If an independent director objects to or
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expresses reservations about any matter, it shall be recorded in the minutes of the Board of

Directors meeting.

5.2. Valuation report for real estate and equipment

In acquiring or disposing of real estate, equipment, or right-of-use assets thereof where the transaction

amount reaches 20 percent of the Company's paid-in capital or NT$300 million or more, the Company,

unless transacting with a domestic government agency, engaging others to build on its own land,

engaging others to build on rented land, or acquiring or disposing of equipment or rightof-use assets

thereof held for business use, shall obtain an appraisal report prior to the date of occurrence of the

event from

a professional appraiser. In the event that the Company obtains an appraisal report or an

opinion from a CPA, attorney or securities underwriter, the professional appraiser and its appraising

personnel, CPAs, attorney or securities underwriter shall comply with the following requirements:

5.2.1.

5.2.2.

5.23.

524.

5.24.1.

524.2.

5.2.43.

May not have previously received a final and unappealable sentence to imprisonment for 1
year or longer for a violation of the Act, the Company Act, the Banking Act of The
Republic of China, the Insurance Act, the Financial Holding Company Act, or the Business
Entity Accounting Act, or for fraud, breach of trust, embezzlement, forgery of documents,
or occupational crime. However, this provision does not apply if 3 years have already
passed since completion of service of the sentence, since expiration of the period of a

suspended sentence, or since a pardon was received.
May not be a related party or de facto related party of any party to the transaction.

If the Company is required to obtain appraisal reports from two or more professional
appraisers, the different professional appraisers or appraisal officers may not be related

parties or de facto related parties of each other.

When issuing an appraisal report or opinion, the personnel referred to in the preceding

Paragraph shall comply with the following:

Prior to accepting a case, they shall prudently assess their own professional capabilities,
practical experience, and independence.

When examining a case, they shall appropriately plan and execute adequate working
procedures, in order to produce a conclusion and use the conclusion as the basis for
issuing the report or opinion. The related working procedures, data collected, and
conclusion shall be fully and accurately specified in the case working papers.

They shall undertake an item-by-item evaluation of the comprehensiveness, accuracy,

and reasonableness of the sources of data used, the parameters, and the information, as
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the basis for issuance of the appraisal report or the opinion.

5.2.4.4. They shall issue a statement attesting to the professional competence and independence

5.2.5.

5.2.6.

5.2.7.

of the personnel who prepared the report or opinion, and that they have evaluated and
found that the information used is reasonable and accurate, and that they have complied
with applicable laws and regulations.
Where due to special circumstances, it is necessary to give a limited price, specified price,
or special price as a reference basis for the transaction price, the transaction shall be
submitted for approval in advance by the Board of Directors; the same procedure shall also
be followed whenever there is any subsequent change to the terms and conditions of the
transaction. In the event of any subsequent change in the transaction terms in the fatare,

the above procedures shall be followed.

Where the transaction amount is NT$1 billion or more, appraisals from two or more

professional appraisers shall be obtained.

Where any one of the following circumstances applies with respect to the professional
appraiser's appraisal results, unless all the appraisal results for the assets to be acquired are
higher than the transaction amount, or all the appraisal results for the assets to be disposed
of are lower than the transaction amount, a certified public accountant shall be engaged to
perform the appraisal in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Auditing
Standards No. 20 published by the ROC Accounting Research and Development
Foundation (ARDF) and render a specific opinion regarding the reason for the discrepancy

and the appropriateness of the transaction price:

5.2.7.1. The discrepancy between the appraisal result and the transaction amount is 20 percent

or more of the transaction amount.

5.2.7.2. The discrepancy between the appraisal results of two or more professional appraisers is

10 percent or more of the transaction amount.

5.2.7.3. The date of the issue of the professional appraiser's report and the date of the

establishment of the contract shall not exceed three months. However, if the publicly
announced current value of the same period is applicable and is less than six months old,

an opinion may still be obtained from the original professional appraiser.

5.2.7.4. Where the Company acquires or disposes of assets through court auction procedures,

the evidentiary documentation issued by the court may be substituted for the appraisal

60



Appendix 2

report or CPA opinion.

5.3. Procedures for handling investment in marketable securities.

5.3.7.
5.3.7.1.

5.3.7.2.

5.3.7.3.

5.3.8.
5.3.8.1.

Trading terms and authorized limits.

If the underlying marketable securities traded are publicly quoted in an active market or
as otherwise specified by the competent authority, the responsible unit shall make a
decision based on market conditions, and the Chairperson shall make the decision based
on the prevailing market price through the centralized trading market or
over-the-counter trading center.

In the case of transactions in marketable securities that do not fall under the provisions
of the preceding Paragraph, the most recent audited and attested or reviewed financial
statements of the subject company shall be used as a reference for evaluating the
transaction price, taking into account the net worth per share, profitability and future
development potential of the subject company. If the amount of the transaction is less
than NT$30 million (inclusive), the Chairperson shall approve the transaction and
submit a report to the coming Board meeting, and at the same time, submit an analysis
report of the unrealized gain or loss on long- and short-term marketable securities. If the
amount exceeds NT$30 million, it must be submitted to the Board of Directors for
approval.

With respect to the Company's acquisition or disposal of assets that are subject to the
approval of the Board of Directors under the Company's procedures or other laws or
regulations, if a director expresses dissent and it is contained in the minutes or a written
statement, the Company shall submit the director's dissenting opinion to each supervisor.
Where the position of independent director has been created by the Company in
accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Act, when a transaction
involving the acquisition or disposal of assets is submitted for discussion by the Board
of Directors pursuant to the preceding Paragraph, the Board of Directors shall take into
full consideration each independent director's opinions. If an independent director
objects to or expresses reservations about any matter, it shall be recorded in the minutes

of the Board of Directors meeting.

Obtaining expert opinion:

Where the Company acquires or disposes of marketable securities and the transaction

amount reaches 20 percent or more of paid-in capital or NT$300 million or more, the
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Company shall engage a certified public accountant prior to the date of occurrence of
the event to render an opinion on the reasonableness of the transaction price; if it is
necessary to use an expert report, the CPA shall comply with the provisions of
Statement of Auditing Standards No. 20 published by ARDF. This requirement does not
apply, however, to publicly quoted prices of securities that have an active market, or
where otherwise provided by regulations of FSC.

8.2.  Where the Company acquires or disposes of assets through court auction procedures,
the evidentiary documentation issued by the court may be substituted for the appraisal

report or CPA opinion.

5.4. Total amounts of real estate and right-of-use assets thereof or securities acquired by the

Company and each subsidiary individually for business use, and limits on individual securities.

54.1.

54.2.

54.3.

Total amount of real estate and right-of-use assets thereof or marketable securities acquired
by the Company or its subsidiaries, not for business use shall not exceed 100% of the total
assets at the time of purchase.

The limit on individual marketable securities shall not exceed 50% of the total assets at the
time of purchase.

Marketable securities acquired through mergers, demergers, acquisitions or share transfers
in accordance with domestic or foreign laws and regulations are not subject to the limits set

forth in 5.4.1 and 5.4.2 above.

5.5. Procedures for handling investment in memberships and intangible assets

5.6.

Where the Company acquires or disposes of memberships or intangible assets or right-of-use
assets thereof or memberships and the transaction amount reaches 20 percent or more of
paid-in capital or NT$300 million or more, except in transactions with a government agency,
the Company shall engage a certified public accountant prior to the date of occurrence of the
event to render an opinion on the reasonableness of the transaction price; the CPA shall
comply with the provisions of Statement of Auditing Standards No. 20 published by the
ARDF.

Procedures for handling related party transactions

When the Company engages in any acquisition or disposal of assets from or to a related party,
in addition to following the procedures of 5.2, 5.3 and 5.5 for handling, if the transaction

amount reaches 10 percent or more of the Company's total assets, the Company shall also
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obtain an appraisal report from a professional appraiser or a CPA's opinion. In addition, when

judg
subs

5.6.1.

5.6.1.1.
5.6.1.2.
5.6.1.3.

5.6.1.4.

5.6.1.5.

5.6.1.6.

5.6.1.7.

ing whether a transaction counterparty is a related party, in addition to legal formalities, the
tance of the relationship shall also be considered.
Evaluation and Operating Procedures
When the Company intends to acquire or dispose of real estate or right-of-use assets
thereof from or to a related party, or when it intends to acquire or dispose of assets other
than real estate or right-of-use assets thereof from or to a related party and the transaction
amount reaches 20 percent or more of paid-in capital, 10 percent or more of the Company's
total assets, or NT$300 million or more, except in trading of domestic government bonds
or bonds under repurchase and resale agreements, or subscription or redemption of money
market funds issued by domestic securities investment trust enterprises, the Company may
not proceed to enter into a transaction contract or make a payment until the following
matters have been approved by the Board of Directors and recognized by the supervisors.
In addition, if the Company has independent directors, the opinions of each independent
director shall be fully considered and any opposing views or reservations of the
independent directors shall be set forth in the minutes of the Board meeting.
The purpose, necessity and anticipated benefit of the acquisition or disposal of assets.
The reason for choosing the related party as a transaction counterparty.
With respect to the acquisition of real estate or right-of-use assets thereof from a related
party, information regarding appraisal of the reasonableness of the preliminary
transaction terms in accordance with 5.6.2.1~2 of the Regulations.
The date and price at which the related party originally acquired the real estate, the
original transaction counterparty, and that transaction counterparty's relationship to the
Company and the related party.
Monthly cash flow forecasts for the year commencing from the anticipated month of
signing of the contract, and evaluation of the necessity of the transaction, and
reasonableness of the funds utilization.
An appraisal report from a professional appraiser or a CPA's opinion obtained in
compliance with the 5.6
Restrictive covenants and other important stipulations associated with the transaction.
The calculation of the transaction amounts referred to in the preceding Paragraph shall

be made in accordance with 5.9.1.6 of the Regulations, and "within the preceding year"
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as used herein refers to the year preceding the date of occurrence of the current
transaction. Items that have been approved by the Board of Directors and recognized by
the supervisors need not be counted toward the transaction amount.

With respect to the types of transactions listed below, when to be conducted between
the Company and its parent or subsidiaries, or between its subsidiaries in which it
directly or indirectly holds 100 percent of the issued shares or authorized capital, the
Company's Board of Directors may pursuant to 5.1 of the Regulations delegate the
Chairperson to decide such matters when the transaction is within a certain amount and
have the decisions subsequently submitted to and ratified by the next Board of Directors

meeting for the acquisition or disposal of machinery and equipment for business use-.

5.6.1.7.1. Acquisition or disposal of equipment or right-of-use assets thereof held for

business use.

5.6.1.7.2. Acquisition or disposal of real estate right-of-use assets held for business use.

5.6.2.
5.6.2.1.

5.6.2.2.

5.6.2.3.

5.6.2.4.

Evaluation of the reasonableness of costs:

Based upon the related party's transaction price plus necessary interest on funding and
the costs to be duly borne by the buyer. “Necessary interest on funding" is imputed as
the weighted average interest rate on borrowing in the year the Company purchases the
property; provided, it may not be higher than the maximum non-financial industry
lending rate announced by the Ministry of Finance.

Total loan value appraisal from a financial institution where the related party has
previously created a mortgage on the property as security for a loan; provided, the
actual cumulative amount loaned by the financial institution shall have been 70 percent
or more of the financial institution's appraised loan value of the property and the period
of the loan shall have been 1 year or more. However, this shall not apply where the
financial institution is a related party of one of the transaction counterparties.

Where land and structures thereupon are combined as a single property purchased or
leased in one transaction, the transaction costs for the land and the structures may be
separately appraised in accordance with either of the means listed in the preceding
Paragraph.

For related party transactions, the Company shall evaluate the cost of real estate or
right-of-use assets thereof in accordance with 5.6.2.1. to 5.6.2.3. of the Regulations, and

shall also engage a CPA to check the appraisal and render a specific opinion.
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If the appraisal results of the Company's related party transactions are lower than the

transaction price in accordance with the provisions of 5.6.2.1. to 5.6.2.3. of the

Regulations, the Company shall follow the provisions of 5.62.6. of the Regulations.

However, where the following circumstances exist, objective evidence has been

submitted and specific opinions on reasonableness have been obtained from a

professional real estate appraiser and a CPA have been obtained, this restriction shall

not apply:

a. Where the related party acquired undeveloped land or leased land for development, it

may submit proof of compliance with one of the following conditions:

(a)

(b)

(©)

Where undeveloped land is appraised in accordance with the means in the
preceding Article, and structures according to the related party's construction
cost plus reasonable construction profit are valued in excess of the actual
transaction price. The "Reasonable construction profit" shall be deemed the
average gross operating profit margin of the related party's construction
division over the most recent 3 years or the gross profit margin for the
construction industry for the most recent period as announced by the Ministry
of Finance, whichever is lower.

Completed transactions by unrelated parties within the preceding year
involving other floors of the same property or neighboring or closely valued
parcels of land, where the land area and transaction terms are similar after
calculation of reasonable price discrepancies in floor or area land prices in
accordance with standard property market sale or leasing practices.
Completed transactions by unrelated parties within the preceding year
involving other floors of the same property or neighboring or closely valued
parcels of land, where the transaction terms are similar after calculation of
reasonable price discrepancies in floor or area land prices in accordance with

standard property market sale or leasing practices.

Where the Company acquiring real estate, or obtaining real estate right-of-use
assets through leasing, from a related party provides evidence that the terms of the
transaction are similar to the terms of completed transactions involving
neighboring or closely valued parcels of land of a similar size by unrelated parties

within the preceding year. Completed transactions involving neighboring or
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closely valued parcels of land in the preceding Paragraph in principle refer to
parcels on the same or an adjacent block and within a distance of no more than
500 meters or parcels close in publicly announced current value; transactions
involving similarly sized parcels in principle refers to transactions completed by
unrelated parties for parcels with a land area of no less than 50 percent of the
property in the planned transaction; within the preceding year refers to the year
preceding the date of occurrence of the acquisition of the real estate or obtainment

of the right-of-use assets thereof.

If the appraisal results of the Company's related party transactions are lower than the

transaction price in accordance with the provisions of 5.6.2.1. to 5.6.2.3. of the

Regulations, the Company shall do the following. The Company and public companies

whose investments in the Company are accounted for using the equity method that has a.

set aside a special reserve may not utilize the special reserve until it has recognized a

loss on decline in the market value of the assets it purchased or leased at a premium, or

they have been disposed of, or the leasing contract has been terminated, or adequate

compensation has been made, or the status quo ante has been restored, or there is other

evidence confirming that there was nothing unreasonable about the transaction, and the

competent authority has given its consent.

a.

A special reserve shall be set aside by the Company in accordance with Article 41,
Paragraph 1 of the Securities and Exchange Act against the difference between the
real estate transaction price and the appraised cost, and may not be distributed or
used for capital increase or issuance of bonus shares. Where the Company uses the
equity method to account for its investment in another company, then the special
reserve called for, under Article 41, Paragraph of the Securities and Exchange Act
shall be set aside pro rata in a proportion consistent with the share of public
company's equity stake in the other company.

Supervisors shall comply with Article 218 of the Company Act. Where an audit
committee has been established in accordance with the provisions of the Act, the
preceding part of this Subparagraph shall apply mutatis mutandis to the
independent director members of the audit committee.

Actions taken pursuant to the 5.6.2.6 a and b of the Regulations shall be reported to

a shareholders meeting, and the details of the transaction shall be disclosed in the
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annual report and any investment prospectus.
5.6.2.7. The Company's related party transactions shall be handled in accordance with the
provisions of the first and second Paragraphs of this Article regarding evaluation and
operating procedures under one of the following circumstances, and the provisions of
5.6.2.1~5.6.2.4 of the Regulations regarding the evaluation of the reasonableness of the

transaction costs shall not apply:

a.  The related party acquired the real estate or right-of-use assets thereof through
inheritance or as a gift.

b.  More than 5 years will have elapsed from the time the related party signed the
contract to obtain the real estate or right-of-use assets thereof to the signing date
for the current transaction.

c.  The real estate is acquired through signing of a joint development contract with
the related party, or through engaging a related party to build real estate, either on
the Company's own land or on rented land.

d.  The real estate right-of-use assets for business use are acquired by the Company
with its parent or subsidiaries, or by its subsidiaries in which it directly or
indirectly holds 100 percent of the issued shares or authorized capital.

5.6.2.8. Ifthere is any other evidence that the Company’s related party transaction is not in
accordance with business practice, the Company shall also handle it in accordance with
the provisions of 5.6.2.6. of the Regulations.
5.7. Procedures for handling derivatives
5.7.1.  Trading principles and guidelines.
5.7.1.1. Transaction types

a. If the Company engages in derivative operations, the Company shall obtain approval
from the leader with the approval authority before trading.

b. Bond margin trading shall also be conducted in the same manner as above and only
after obtaining approval from the leader with the approval authority and in
accordance with the provisions of the Regulations.

c. Operation and hedging strategies: The purpose of trading derivatives shall be to
hedge risks and the instruments to be traded shall be selected to hedge the risks

arising from the Company's business operations. The counterparties should also be
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selected among banks with which the Company has business dealings as far as
possible to avoid credit risk. Before foreign exchange operations, the type of
transaction must be clearly defined as a hedge or a financial operation in pursuit of
investment income as the basis for accounting.

Trading limit:

5.7.2.1. Hedging limit: The limit needed to hedge the risk arising from the transaction should be

determined according to the realized and possible future parts. Take the demand for

USD as an example:

a. The finance unit uses 100% of the monthly net foreign exchange exposure as the
hedge limit.

b. If the amount exceeds 100%, it should be approved by the leader with the approval

authority.

5.7.2.2.  Financial transaction limit: If the amount exceeds 100%, it should be approved by the

5.7.3.

leader with the approval authority.

Division of authority and responsibility:

5.7.3.1. Finance unit.

5.7.3.2.

5.7.4.

a. Responsible for strategy formulation for the entire Company's foreign
exchange operations.

b. In response to changes in the foreign exchange market, the Finance
Department should collect relevant information regularly, judge the trend and
risk assessment, be familiar with financial products and legal regulations, and
then consider the Company's foreign exchange position and prepare an
operation strategy plan, and submit it to the leader with approval authority for
approval in accordance with the approval authority as a basis for risk
avoidance.

c. Regularly calculate the realized or possible future risk exposure and conduct
various hedging transactions according to the authorized authority.
Accounting unit: The transaction and settlement receipts of derivative transactions

entered into by the finance unit for hedging purposes should be reconciled with the
transactions notified by the finance department, and the related accounting treatment
should be performed.

Performance evaluation:

68



Appendix 2

5.7.4.1.  Hedging transaction:

a. According to the size of the foreign exchange position, the foreign exchange profit
and loss target is set, and this target must be included in the performance evaluation
and reviewed periodically.

b. The foreign exchange trading personnel shall try their best to achieve the target
exchange rate of the budget according to the type of financial instruments they set,
and use it as the basis for performance evaluation.

c. Foreign exchange operating personnel should calculate the net exposure to risk to
the management on a monthly basis for management and reference.

5.7.4.2.  Financial transactions: Monthly net profit and loss statements are prepared for
management's reference.

5.7.4.3. The setting of loss limit: For the above hedging and financial foreign exchange
transactions, the single stop-loss amount shall be set at US$10,000 at any point in time,
and the overall stop-loss amount shall be set at one percent of the total amount of
transactions undertaken as the stop loss target. Therefore, if the stop-loss amount is
surpassed, appropriate countermeasures such as early settlement or reversal should be
taken to prevent the loss from expanding.

5.7.5.  Authorized limit and executive unit:

5.7.5.1.  Authorize limit:

a. Recurring foreign exchange transactions (the following currencies are limited to
USD to NTD and USD to JPY): Based on the growth of the Company's revenues
and changes in the risks, the authorized limit table is established, approved into
effect by the leader with the approval authority, and submitted to the coming Board
meeting.

The same applies to any amendment. If the total amount of transactions undertaken
every day or accumulated net positions exceeds the authorized limit, it must be
approved by the person who has the authorized limit.

The authorized personnel and the authorized limit shall be in accordance with the
provisions of the "Approval Authority Table".

b. Capital expenditures for specific purposes: Hedging transactions for specific
purposes, such as the purchase of equipment with large foreign exchange amounts,

can only be made after receiving instructions from the finance leader.
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5.7.5.2.  Executive unit: Due to the special nature of derivative transactions, which are
fast-changing, significant in amount, frequently traded and complex, the transactions
and their management must be performed by highly professional personnel. Currently,
the Company authorizes the finance personnel to perform such transactions, and the
matter should be reported to the coming Board meeting.

5.7.6.  Execution process:

The Company's trading personnel conduct© Company trading personnel must have
transactions with banks in accordance with authorized trading limits and currency
the authorized limits. specifications

Currently, the Company's authorized trading
personnel have to obtain the approval of the
authorized leader according to the authorized
limit table for transactions with banks in
excess of the authorized limit table.

Each transaction must be clearly identified as

a hedge or financial operation for accounting

purposes.
Transactions are conducted by telephone|* In the case of hedging, the total position of
with the Bank. the operation should not exceed the total net

worth of the Company. Any changes should

be approved by the leader according to the

approval authority.

If a transaction is completed, the trading|- Conduct statistics of transaction contents in

personnel must prepare a foreign exchange the foreign exchange transaction form, and

transaction sheet with the details. conduct statistics of positions.

l
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In addition to informing accounting of the|*

transaction details and handling the related|
accounting  affairs, the confirming
personnel will confirm and send back the
transaction sheet provided by the bank

with a seal.

!

A profit and loss analysis report is|*

prepared regularly on a monthly basis and
future position generation and hedging

strategies are discussed for future

operating guidelines.

5.7.7.  Operation instruction:

Appendix 2

The trading personnel cannot confirm the

transaction sheet.

In the case of financial transactions, trading
personnel should have access to profit and
loss estimates for decision-making purposes,
and should take stop-loss actions if stop-loss

points are reached.

Operation instruction Person in charge

operation.

1. The operation strategy is formulated Finance personnel
annually according to the annual plan and
submitted to the President for approval as

the basis for the annual foreign exchange

approval authority.

2. According to the overall market conditions, |Finance personnel
the operating strategy is revised in a timely

manner and submitted to the leader with

3. If the trading personnel place orders with  |[Financial transaction
the bank within the authorized scope, they |personnel
must obtain prior written approval from the

Vice President or above if the amount
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5.7.9.

exceeds the authorized amount.

. According to the bank's transaction return,

Financial transaction

confirmation document of the bank
according to the content of the foreign
exchange transaction sheet and send it back

with a seal.

after confirmation, fill out the "Foreign personnel
Exchange Transaction Sheet".
. Check the foreign exchange transaction President

. When foreign exchange transactions result

in exchange gains or losses, the processing
personnel must attach the "Foreign
Exchange Transaction Sheet" as the basis

for accounting.

Financial settlement

personnel

. The announcement is made monthly in

accordance with the regulations of the

competent authority.

Stock affairs personnel

34, "Accounting for Financial Instruments".

5.7.10. Internal control system:

5.7.10.1.

Risk management measures:

5.7.10.1.1. Credit risk considerations:

realized profit or loss, together with the monthly operating conditions.

Appendix 2

Announcement and reporting procedures: After listing on TWSE, the Company and its
subsidiaries shall announce and report to the competent authorities monthly the total
amount of open contracts, net profit or loss from market valuation, the amount of deposits

paid, the total amount of contracts liquidated or settled in the previous month, and the

Accounting treatment: The accounting treatment of the Company's derivative financial

instruments is in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No.

a. The counterparties of the transactions shall, as far as possible, be banks with

which the Company has dealings and which can provide professional

information as a principle.

b. The products traded are limited to those offered by internationally renowned
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banks.

c. Ifthe product to be traded is a specific product of a communist country, a
credit risk aversion plan shall be established and approved by the Chairperson
before proceeding.

Market Risk Consideration: The Company's major positions of the accounts are

targeted for hedging operations to avert possible market risks.

To ensure the liquidity of the market, the financial products selected should have a

high degree of liquidity (i.e., they can readily be offset in the market), and the

financial institution entrusted with the transaction must have sufficient
information and the ability to trade in any market at any time.

Operation consideration: The Company should follow the authority limit,

operating procedures and include them in internal audits to avoid operating risks.

The Finance Department should establish a "derivative referendum book".

Legal consideration: Documents signed with banks should be reviewed by

specialized personnel in finance and legal affairs or legal counsel before they are

formally signed to avoid legal risks.

Instrument considerations: Internal trading personnel and counterparty banks

should have complete and accurate expertise in the financial instruments traded,

and banks are required to fully disclose the risks to avoid losses caused by misuse
of financial instruments.

Cash settlement consideration: In addition to complying with various provisions

of the authorized limits, authorized trading personnel should also pay attention to

the cash flow in NTD and foreign currencies to ensure that sufficient cash is

available at the time of settlement.

5.7.11. Internal control:

5.7.11.1.

5.7.11.2.

5.7.11.3.

5.7.11.4.

Trading personnel may not serve concurrently in other capacities such as confirmation
and settlement.

The trading personnel shall deliver the transaction certificate or contract to the
confirming personnel for recordation.

Confirmation personnel shall regularly reconcile or confirm by letter with the
correspondent bank.

The trading personnel shall check whether the total amount of transactions exceeds the
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net positions of foreign currency assets, liabilities and commitments at any time.
5.7.11.5. At the end of each month, the finance personnel shall evaluate the profitand loss
based on the closing rate on that day and prepare a statement for review by the
management above the leader of the Finance Department.
5.7.12. Regular evaluation:
5.7.12.1. The Board of Directors shall designate senior management to monitor and evaluate
from time to time whether the derivative transactions are conducted in accordance
with the Company's established trading procedures, whether the performance of the
transactions is consistent with the established business strategies, and whether the risks
assumed are within the Company's tolerances. The Company shall evaluate the
position of derivative transactions that are held for trading purposes based on the
market price, at least twice a month for hedging transactions required for business
purposes, and at least once a week for non-hedging transactions. If there is any
abnormal situation in the market price evaluation report (e.g., the holding position has
exceeded the loss limit), it should be reported to the Board of Directors immediately
and countermeasures should be taken
5.7.13. Internal audit system: The internal audit personnel shall regularly understand the
appropriateness of the internal control, check the trading department's compliance with the
Regulations and analyze the trading cycle, and prepare audit reports. If significant
violations are discovered, each supervisor shall be notified in writing. After listing on
TWSE, the Company shall report to the competent authorities by the end of February of
the following year the implementation of the annual audit plan for internal audit
operations.
Where independent directors have been appointed in accordance with the provisions of the
Act, for matters for which notice shall be given to the supervisors under the preceding
Paragraph, written notice shall also be given to the independent directors.
Where an audit committee has been established in accordance with the provisions of the
Act, the provisions of Paragraph 1 relating to supervisors shall apply mutatis mutandis to
the audit committee.
5.8. Procedures for handling merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of shares.
5.8.1.  Evaluation and Operating Procedures

5.8.1.1. In the event the Company is engaged in a merger, demerger, acquisition or transfer of
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shares, the Company shall appoint an attorney, a CPA and a securities underwriter to
jointly discuss the estimated timetable for the statutory procedures and organize a
dedicated project team to carry out the deal in accordance with the statutory procedures.
Prior to convening the Board of Directors to resolve the matter, shall engage a CPA,
attorney, or securities underwriter to give an opinion on the reasonableness of the share
exchange ratio, acquisition price, or distribution of cash or other property to
shareholders, and submit it to the Board of Directors for deliberation and passage.
However, the requirement of obtaining an aforesaid opinion on reasonableness issued
by an expert may be exempted in the case of a merger by the Company of a subsidiary
in which it directly or indirectly holds 100 percent of the issued shares or authorized
capital, and in the case of a merger between subsidiaries in which the public company
directly or indirectly holds 100 percent of the respective subsidiaries’ issued shares or
authorized capital.

5.8.1.2.  The Company shall prepare a public report to shareholders detailing important
contractual content and matters relevant to the merger, demerger, or acquisition prior to
the shareholders meeting and include it along with the expert opinion referred to in
Paragraph 1 of the preceding Article when sending shareholders notification of the
shareholders meeting for reference in deciding whether to approve the merger, demerger,
or acquisition. Provided, where a provision of another act exempts a company from
convening a shareholders meeting to approve the merger, demerger, or acquisition, this
restriction shall not apply. In addition, where the shareholders meeting of any one of the
companies participating in a merger, demerger, or acquisition fails to convene or pass a
resolution due to lack of a quorum, insufficient votes, or other legal restriction, or the
proposal is rejected by the shareholders meeting, the companies participating in the
merger, demerger or acquisition shall immediately publicly explain the reason, the
follow-up measures, and the preliminary date of the next shareholders meeting.

5.8.2.  Other matters that should be noted:

5.8.2.1. Date of the Board of Directors’ meeting: A company participating in a merger, demerger,
or acquisition shall convene a Board of Directors meeting and shareholders meeting on
the day of the transaction to resolve matters relevant to the merger, demerger, or
acquisition, unless another act provides otherwise or the competent authority is notified

in advance of extraordinary circumstances and grants consent. A company participating
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in a transfer of shares shall call a Board of Directors meeting on the day of the

transaction, unless another act provides otherwise or the competent authority is notified

in advance of extraordinary circumstances and grants consent.

When participating in a merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of another company's

shares, a company that is listed on an exchange or has its shares traded on an OTC

market shall prepare a full written record of the following information and retain it for 5

years for reference:

5.8.2.1.1.

5.8.2.1.2.

5.8.2.1.3.

5.8.2.14.

Basic identification data for personnel: Including the occupational titles, names,
and national ID numbers (or passport numbers in the case of foreign nationals) of
all persons involved in the planning or implementation of any merger, demerger,
acquisition, or transfer of another company's shares prior to the disclosure of the
information.

Dates of material events: Including the signing of any letter of intent or
memorandum of understanding, the hiring of a financial or legal advisor, the
execution of a contract, and the convening of a Board of Directors meeting.
Important documents and minutes: Including merger, demerger, acquisition, and
share transfer plans, any letter of intent or memorandum of understanding,
material contracts, and minutes of Board of Directors meetings.

In the event of acquisition, or transfer of another company's shares, a company
that is listed on an exchange or has its shares traded on an OTC market shall,
within 2 days counting inclusively from the date of passage of a resolution by the
Board of Directors, report (in the prescribed format and via the Internet-based
information system) the information set out in Subparagraphs 1 and 2 of the

preceding Paragraph to the competent authority for recordation.

5.8.2.2.  Prior non-disclosure undertaking: Every person participating in or privy to the plan for

merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of shares shall issue a written undertaking of

confidentiality and may not disclose the content of the plan prior to public disclosure of

the information and may not trade, in their own name or under the name of another

person, in any stock or other equity security of any company related to the plan for

merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of shares.

5.8.2.3. Principles for determining and changing the share exchange ratio or acquisition price:

A company that conducts a merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of shares, prior to
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convening the board meetings of both companies to resolve the matter, shall engage a

CPA, attorney, or securities underwriter to give an opinion on the reasonableness of the

share exchange ratio, acquisition price, or distribution of cash or other property to

shareholders, and submit it to the shareholders’ meeting. In principle, the share

exchange ratio or acquisition price shall not be changed arbitrarily, except when the

conditions for such change have been stipulated in the contract and have been publicly

disclosed. The conditions under which the share exchange ratio or the acquisition price

may be changed are as follows:

a.

Cash capital increase, issuance of convertible corporate bonds, or the issuance of
bonus shares, issuance of corporate bonds with warrants, preferred shares with
warrants, stock warrants, or other equity based securities.

An action, such as disposal of major assets, that affects the Company's financial
operations.

An event, such as a major disaster or major change in technology, that affects
shareholder equity or share price.

An adjustment where any of the companies participating in the merger, demerger,
acquisition, or transfer of shares from another company, buys back treasury stock.
An increase or decrease in the number of entities or companies participating in the
merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of shares.

Other terms/conditions that the contract stipulates may be altered and that have been

publicly disclosed.

Contents that should be contained in the contract: In addition to the provisions of Article

317-1 of the Company Act and Article 22 of the Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act,

the contract of the merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of shares shall also contain

the following information:

a.

b.

Handling of breach of contract.

Principles for the handling of equity-type securities previously issued or treasury
stock previously bought back by any company that is extinguished in a merger or
that is demerged.

The amount of treasury stock participating companies are permitted under law to
buy back after the record date of calculation of the share exchange ratio, and the

principles for handling thereof.
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d. The manner of handling changes in the number of participating entities or
companies.
e. Preliminary progress schedule for plan execution, and anticipated completion date.
f.  Scheduled date for convening the legally mandated shareholders meeting if the plan
exceeds the deadline without completion, and relevant procedures.
Procedures for handling merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of shares.
In the event of a change in the number of companies involved in a merger, demerger,
acquisition or transfer of shares. After public disclosure of the information, if any
company participating in the merger, demerger, acquisition, or share transfer intends
further to carry out a merger, demerger, acquisition, or share transfer with another
company, all of the participating companies shall carry out anew the procedures or legal
actions that had originally been completed toward the merger, demerger, acquisition, or
share transfer; except that where the number of participating companies is decreased
and a participating company's shareholders meeting has adopted a resolution
authorizing the Board of Directors to alter the limits of authority, such participating
company may be exempted from calling another shareholders meeting to resolve the
matter anew.
Where any of the companies participating in a merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer
of shares is not a public company, the Company shall sign an agreement with the
non-public company and shall comply with the provisions of 5.8.2.1. of the Regulations
on the date of convening a board meeting, 5.8.2.2. of the Regulations on prior
non-disclosure undertaking, and 5.8.2.5. of the Regulations on Procedures for handling

merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of shares

5.9. Procedures for Public Disclosure of Information

5.9.1.
59.1.1.

The items and criteria for announcement and reporting are:

When the Company intends to acquire or dispose of real estate or right-of-use assets
thereof from or to a related party, or when it intends to acquire or dispose of assets other
than real estate or right-of-use assets thereof from or to a related party and the
transaction amount reaches 20 percent or more of paid-in capital, 10 percent or more of
the Company's total assets, or NT$300 million or more, except in trading of domestic
government bonds or bonds under repurchase and resale agreements, or subscription or

redemption of money market funds issued by domestic securities investment trust
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enterprises.

Merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of shares.

Losses from derivatives trading reaching the limits on aggregate losses or losses on

individual contracts set out in the procedures adopted by the Company.

Where the type of asset acquired or disposed of is equipment or right-of-use assets

thereof for business use, and furthermore the transaction counterparty is not a related

party, and the transaction amount meets any of the following criteria:

a. For a public company whose paid-in capital is less than NT$10 billion, the
transaction amount reaches NT$500 million or more.

b. For a public company whose paid-in capital is NT$10 billion or more, the
transaction amount reaches NT$1 billion or more.

Acquisition or disposal by the Company in the construction business of real estate or

right-of-use assets thereof for construction use, and furthermore the transaction

counterparty is not a related party, and the transaction amount reaches NT$500 million;

among such cases, if the public company has paid-in capital of NT$10 billion or more,

and it 1s disposing of real estate from a completed construction project that it

constructed itself, and furthermore the transaction counterparty is not a related party,

then the threshold shall be a transaction amount reaching NT$1 billion or more.

Where land is acquired under an arrangement on engaging others to build on the

Company's own land, engaging others to build on rented land, joint construction and

allocation of housing units, joint construction and allocation of ownership percentages,

or joint construction and separate sale, and furthermore the transaction counterparty is

not a related party, and the amount the Company expects to invest in the transaction

reaches NT$500 million.

Where an asset transaction other than any of those referred to in the preceding six

Subparagraphs, a disposal of receivables by a financial institution, or an investmentin

the mainland China area reaches 20 percent or more of paid-in capital or NT$300

million. However, this shall not apply to the following circumstances:

a. Trading of domestic government bonds.

b. Where done by professional investors—securities trading on domestic or foreign

securities exchanges or OTC markets, or subscription of ordinary corporate bonds or

general bank debentures without equity characteristics (excluding subordinated debt)
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that are offered and issued in the primary market by securities firms, or subscription
or redemption of securities investment trust funds or futures trust funds, or
subscription by a securities firm of securities as necessitated by its undertaking
business or as an advisory recommending securities firm for an emerging stock
company, in accordance with the rules of the Taipei Exchange.

Trading of bonds under repurchase and resale agreements, or subscription or
redemption of money market funds issued by domestic securities investment trust

enterprises.

The amount of the aforementioned transactions is calculated as follows, and "Within the
preceding year" as used in the preceding Paragraph refers to the year preceding the date
of occurrence of the current transaction. Items duly announced in accordance with these

Regulations need not be counted toward the transaction amount.

The amount of any individual transaction.

b. The cumulative transaction amount of acquisitions and disposals of the same type of

underlying asset with the same transaction counterparty within the preceding year.
The cumulative transaction amount of acquisitions and disposals (cumulative
acquisitions and disposals, respectively) of real estate or right-of-use assets thereof
within the same development project within the preceding year.

The cumulative transaction amount of acquisitions and disposals (cumulative
acquisitions and disposals, respectively) of the same security within the preceding

year.

Time limit for making announcement and reporting:

Under any of the aforementioned circumstances, the Company acquiring or disposing of

assets shall publicly announce and report the relevant information as prescribed by

regulations within 2 days counting inclusively from the date of occurrence of the event

5.9.3.  Announcing and reporting procedures.

593.1.

59.3.2.

The Company shall announce and report the relevant information on the website
designated by the competent authority.

The Company shall compile monthly reports on the status of derivatives trading
engaged in up to the end of the preceding month by the Company and any subsidiaries
that are not domestic public companies and enter the information in the prescribed

format into the information reporting website designated by the FSC by the 10th day of
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each month.
5.9.3.3.  When the Company at the time of public announcement makes an error or omission in
an item required by regulations to be publicly announced and so is required to correct it,
all the items shall be again publicly announced and reported in their entirety within two
days counting inclusively from the date of knowledge of such error or omission.
5.9.3.4. The Company, when acquiring or disposing of assets, shall keep all relevant contracts,
meeting minutes, logbooks, appraisal reports and CPA, attorney, and securities
underwriter opinions at the Company, where they shall be retained for 5 years except
where another act provides otherwise.
a. Change, termination, or rescission of a contract signed in regard to the original
transaction.
b. The merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of shares is not completed by the
scheduled date set forth in the contract.

c. Change to the originally publicly announced and reported information.

5.10. Professional appraisers and their officers, certified public accounts, attorneys, and securities
underwriters that provide the Company with appraisal reports, certified public accountant's
opinions, attorney's opinions, or underwriter's opinions shall meet the following requirements
must not be related to the parties to the transaction.

5.11. Control procedures for the acquisition and disposal of assets by subsidiaries.

5.11.1. The Company shall supervise its subsidiaries to establish procedures for the management
of the acquisition or disposal of assets in accordance with the "Regulations Governing the
Acquisition and Disposal of Assets by Public Companies"

5.11.2. The Company's subsidiaries shall acquire or dispose of assets in accordance with the
relevant regulations, and shall report to the Company in writing in aggregate the
acquisition or disposal of assets for the previous month by the 10th day of each month.

5.11.3. If the subsidiary is not a public company and the assets acquired or disposed of meet the
standards for public announcement and reporting as stipulated in Article 5.1.1 of the
"Regulations for Acquisition and Disposal of Assets", the Company shall make the
announcement and report on behalf of the subsidiary.

5.12. Penalty:

5.12.1. If the Company's managerial officers and responsible processing personnel violate the
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Regulations, they shall be punished in accordance with the relevant regulations of the

Company.

5.13. Implementation and amendment:

5.13.1.

5.13.2.

5.13.3.

5.13.4.

After being approved by the Board of Directors, the Regulations will be sent to each
supervisor and submitted to the shareholders' meeting for approval before implementation,
and the same applies to any amendment. If any director expresses dissent and it is
contained in the minutes or a written statement, the Company shall submit the director's
dissenting opinion to each supervisor.

Where the position of independent director has been created by the Company in
accordance with the provisions of the preceding Paragraph, when the Procedures are
submitted for discussion by the Board of Directors pursuant to the preceding Paragraph,
the Board of Directors shall take into full consideration each independent director's
opinions. If an independent director objects to or expresses reservations about any matter,
it shall be recorded in the minutes of the Board of Directors meeting.

The Company shall not waive its capital increase to Silver Cub Inc. (hereinafter referred to
as “SILVER”) in future years; SILVER shall not waive its capital increase to Golden Cub
Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "GOLDEN") in future years; GOLDEN shall not waive its
capital increase to CUB ELECPARTS INC., Shanghai. (hereinafter referred to as CUB
Shanghai) in future years. In the future, if the Company waives its capital increase to the
above companies or disposes of its shareholdings in the above companies, a special
resolution of the Company's Board of Directors is required.

For the calculation of 10 percent of total assets under these Regulations, the total assets
stated in the most recent parent company only financial report or individual financial report
prepared under the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers shall be used.

In the case of a company whose shares have no par value or a par value other than
NT$10—for the calculation of transaction amounts of 20 percent of paid-in capital under
these Regulations, 10 percent of equity attributable to owners of the parent shall be
substituted; for calculations under the provisions of these Regulations regarding transaction
amounts relative to a paid-in capital of NT$10 billion, NT$20 billion of equity attributable

to owners of the parent shall be substituted.

Related forms:
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Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meetings [before amendment]

Purpose: To establish a good governance system for the shareholders' meeting, to improve the
supervisory function and to strengthen the management function of the Company, the Rules are
established for compliance.

Scope: All matters relating to the convening of shareholders' meetings, speeches at shareholders'

meetings, and procedures for conducting meetings shall be governed by the Rules.

Definition: None.

Flowchart: None.

. Operation contents:

5.1. The Company’s rules of procedure for shareholders' meetings shall be in accordance with the
Rules unless otherwise provided by law or the Articles of Incorporation.

5.2. There are two types of sharecholders’ meeting: regular and extraordinary. The regular meeting is
held once a year and shall be convened by the Board of Directors in accordance with Article
172 of the Company Act within six months after the end of each fiscal year. A special meeting
can be convened according to the law when necessary.

5.3. The entries in the shareholder roster referred to in the preceding Paragraph shall not be altered
within 30 days prior to the convening date of a regular shareholders' meeting, or within 15 days
prior to the convening date of a special shareholders' meeting, or within 5 days prior to the
target date fixed by the issuing company for distribution of dividends, bonus or other benefits.
After the public offering of the Company’s shares, the Company shall suspend the transfer of
shares within 60 days prior to the regular shareholders' meeting and within 30 days prior to the
special shareholders' meeting.

5.4. The shareholders shall be notified of the convening of the regular shareholders' meeting by

notice of the shareholders' meeting 20 days in advance; the shareholders shall be notified of the

convening of the special shareholders' meeting by notice of the shareholders' meeting 10 days

in advance. After the public offering of the Company’s shares, the Company shall prepare a

handbook for the shareholders' meeting and notify the shareholders by sending a notice of the

shareholders' meeting 30 days in advance. The meeting handbook and supplementary materials
should be made available to shareholders at any time 15 days before the shareholders' meeting,
and are exhibited on the premises of the Company and the professional stock affairs agency
appointed by the Company, and are distributed on-site at the shareholders' meeting;
shareholders shall be notified 15 days in advance of the convening of the special shareholders’
meeting, and for shareholders holding less than 1,000 registered shares, the meeting shall be
announced by means of a public post on the Market Observation Post System 15 days in
advance. The causes or subjects of a meeting of shareholders to be convened shall be indicated
in the individual notice to be given to shareholders and in the announcement; and the notice
may, as an alternative, be given by means of electronic transmission, after obtaining prior
consent from the recipient(s) thereof. Matters related to election or dismissal of directors,
change of articles of incorporation, dissolution, merger, or split of the Company, or matters
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under Article 185, Paragraph 1 of the Company Act, Article 26-1 and 43-6 of the Securities and
Exchange Act, Article 50-1 and Article 60-2 of the Regulations Governing the Offering and
Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers, shall be listed and described in the causes and
subjects for the convening of the meeting, and shall not be proposed as an extempore motion.
Shareholders holding more than 1% of the total number of issued shares may submit a proposal
to the Company for a regular shareholders' meeting. However, the number of items in the
proposal is limited to one. Proposal containing more than one item will not be included in the
meeting agenda.

In addition, when any of the circumstances of Paragraph 4 of Article 172-1 of the Company Act
applies to a proposal put forward by a shareholder, the Board of Directors may exclude it from
the meeting agenda. Shareholders may submit proposals to urge the Company to promote
public interests or fulfill its social responsibilities. In terms of procedures, the number of items
in the proposals should be limited to one in accordance with the relevant provisions of Atticle
172-1 of the Company Act. Any proposal with more than one item shall not be included in the
meeting agenda.

Prior to the date on which share transfer registration is suspended before the convention of a
regular shareholders’ meeting, the Company shall give a public notice announcing acceptance
of proposal, the place and the period for shareholders to submit proposals to be discussed at the
meeting; and the period for accepting such proposals shall not be less than ten (10) days.

The number of words of a proposal to be submitted by a shareholder shall be limited to not
more than three hundred (300) words. The shareholder who has submitted a proposal shall
attend, in person or by a proxy, the regular shareholders’ meeting whereat his proposal is to be
discussed and shall take part in the discussion of such proposal.

The company shall, prior to preparing and delivering the shareholders’ meeting notice, inform,
by a notice, all the proposal submitting shareholders of the proposal screening results, and shall
list in the shareholders’ meeting notice the proposals conforming to the requirements set out in
this Article. With regard to the proposals submitted by shareholders but not included in the
agenda of the meeting, the cause of exclusion of such proposals and explanation shall be made
by the Board of Directors at the shareholders’ meeting to be convened.

The location for a shareholders’ meeting should be the premises of the Company, or a place
easily accessible to shareholders and suitable for a shareholders’ meeting. The meeting may
begin no earlier than 9 a.m. and no later than 3 p.m. When the Company has independent
directors, independent directors' opinions on the meeting location and time shall also be fully
considered.

A shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend a shareholders’ meeting on his/her/its behalf by
executing a proxy form prepared and issued by the Company stating therein the scope of power
authorized to the proxy.

A shareholder may only execute one proxy form and appoint one proxy only and shall serve
such written proxy to the Company no later than 5 days prior to the meeting date of the
shareholders’ meeting. In case two or more written proxies are received from one shareholder,
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the first one received by the Company shall prevail; unless an explicit statement to revoke the
previously written proxy is made in the proxy, which comes later.

After the service of the proxy form of a proxy to the Company, in case the shareholder issuing
the said proxy intends to attend the shareholders’ meeting in person, a proxy rescission notice
shall be filed with the Company at least two days prior to the date of the shareholders’ meeting
as scheduled in the shareholders’ meeting notice so as to rescind the proxy at issue. Otherwise,
the voting power exercised by the authorized proxy at the meeting shall prevail.

The Company should specify in its shareholders' meeting notice the time during which
shareholder attendance registrations will be accepted, the place to register for attendance, and
other matters for attention.

The time at which shareholder attendance registrations will be accepted should be at least 30
minutes prior to the time the meeting commences. The place at which attendance registrations
are accepted should be clearly marked and a sufficient number of suitable personnel should be
assigned to handle the registrations.

Shareholders or their proxies (hereinafter referred to as the shareholders) should present
attendance cards, sign-in cards, or other attendance certificates to attend a shareholders'
meeting. The Company must not arbitrarily add requirements for other documents from the
shareholders in support of their eligibility to attend. Solicitors seeking proxy forms should also
bring identification documents for verification.

The Company should furnish a signature book for attending shareholders, or the attending
shareholders may hand in a sign-in card instead.

The Company should furnish attending shareholders with the meeting handbook, annual report,
attendance card, speaker slips, voting ballots, and other meeting materials. Where there is an
election of directors, election ballots should also be furnished.

When a shareholder is a government or a corporation, the number of representatives to attend
the shareholders' meeting is not limited to one. When a corporation is entrusted to attend a
shareholders' meeting, only one representative can be appointed to attend.

If a shareholders’ meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the Chairperson of the Board
shall chair the meeting. In case the Chairperson is on leave or absent or cannot exercise his
power and authority for any cause, the Vice Chairperson shall act on his behalf. In case there is
no Vice Chairperson, or the Vice Chairperson is also on leave or absent or unable to exercise
his power and authority for any cause, the Chairperson shall designate one of the managing
directors, or where there are no managing directors, one of the directors to act on his behalf. In
the absence of such a designation, the managing directors or the directors shall elect from
among themselves an acting Chairperson. A majority of the Board of Directors and at least one
member of each functional committee shall be present at a shareholders' meeting called by the
Board of Directors, and the attendance shall be recorded in the minutes of the shareholders'
meeting.

If a shareholders’ meeting is convened by someone with the convening right but other than the
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Board of Directors, the convening person shall chair the meeting and if there are more than two
such persons, one of them shall be elected as the chair of the meeting. The Company may
appoint lawyers, CPA, or related personnel to attend the shareholders' meeting.

Attendance in a shareholders' meeting should be calculated based on numbers of shares. The
number of shares in attendance shall be calculated based on the shares indicated by the
signature book or sign-in cards handed in, plus the number of shares whose voting rights are
exercised by correspondence or electronically.

When a managing director or a director serves as chair, the director shall be one who has held
that position for six months or more and who understands the financial and business conditions
of the Company. The same shall be true for a representative of a corporate director that serves
as chair.

The chair should call the meeting to order at the scheduled meeting time, and at the same time,
announce the number of shares with no voting rights and the number of shares present, etc.
However, when the attending shareholders do not represent a majority of the total number of
issued shares, the chair may announce a postponement. No more than two such postponements
may be made for a combined total of no more than one hour. When there are still insufficiently
attending shareholders representing more than one-third of the total issued shares after two
postponements, the chair shall announce the meeting to be aborted.

When there are still insufficiently attending shareholders representing more than one-third of
the total issued shares after two postponements, a tentative resolution may be adopted in
accordance with Article 175, Paragraph 1 of the Company Act and all shareholders shall be
notified of the tentative resolution and another shareholders' meeting shall be convened within
one month.

Before the conclusion of the meeting, if the attending shareholders represent a majority of the
total number of issued shares, the chair may submit a tentative resolution for voting by the
shareholders' meeting in accordance with Article 174 of the Company Act.

The Company, beginning from the time it accepts shareholder attendance registrations, should
make an uninterrupted audio and video recording of the registration procedure, the proceedings
of the shareholders' meeting, and the voting and vote counting processes.

The recorded materials of the preceding Paragraph should be kept for at least one year.
However, if any shareholder files a lawsuit in accordance with Article 189 of the Company Act,
they shall be kept until the end of the lawsuit

If a shareholders’ meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the meeting agenda shall be
set by the Board of Directors. The meeting should proceed in the order set by the agenda, which
may not be changed without a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting.

The provision referred to above is applicable even when the shareholders’ meeting is convened
by other than the Board of Directors mutatis mutandis.

The chair must not declare the meeting adjourned before the conclusion of the meeting agenda

of the preceding two Paragraphs (including extempore motions), except by a resolution of the
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shareholders’ meeting. However, if the chair violates the rules of procedure and adjourns the
meeting, the other members of the Board of Directors shall promptly assist the shareholders
present in accordance with the legal procedures and a majority of the shareholders present may
vote to elect a chair to continue the meeting.

The chair shall give sufficient explanation and opportunity to discuss the proposals and any
amendments or extraordinary motions proposed by the shareholders, and when he/she is of the
opinion that the motion is ready to be voted on, he/she may declare that the discussion is closed,
and put to the vote.

Before speaking, an attending shareholder must specify the subject of the speech on a speaker
slip, his or her shareholder account number (or attendance card number), and account name.
The order in which shareholders speak will be set by the chair.

An attending shareholder who has submitted a speaker slip but does not actually speak shallbe
deemed to have not spoken. When the content of the speech does not correspond to the subject
given on the speaker slip, the spoken content shall prevail.

Except with the consent of the chair, a shareholder may not speak more than twice on the same
proposal, and a single speech may not exceed 5 minutes.

If the shareholder's speech violates the rules or exceeds the scope of the topic, the chair may
terminate the speech or declare the discussion closed, and proceed with other agenda or
procedures.

When an attending shareholder is speaking, other shareholders must not speak or interrupt
unless they have sought and obtained the consent of the chair and the speaking shareholder; the
chair should stop any violation.

When a corporate shareholder appoints two or more representatives to attend a shareholders’
meeting, only one person may speak on the same proposal.

After an attending shareholder has spoken, the chair may respond in person or direct relevant
personnel to respond.

The Company’s shareholders have one voting right per share. The shares shall have no voting

power under any of the following circumstances:

5.13.1. The share(s) of a company that are held by the issuing company itself in accordance with

the laws;

5.13.2. The shares of a holding company that are held by its subordinate company, where the total

number of voting shares or total shares equity held by the holding company in such a
subordinate company represents more than one half of the total number of voting shares or

the total shares equity of such a subordinate company; or

5.13.3.  The shares of a holding company and its subordinate company(ies) that are held by

another company, where the total number of the shares or total shares equity of that
company held by the holding company and its subordinate company(ies) directly or
indirectly represents more than one half of the total number of voting shares or the total

share equity of such a company.
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Resolution at a shareholders' meeting should be calculated based on numbers of shares.

The shares held by shareholders having no voting right shall not be counted in the total number
of issued shares while adopting a resolution at a meeting of shareholders.

A shareholder who has a personal interest in the matter under discussion at a meeting, which
may impair the interest of the Company, shall not vote nor exercise the voting right on behalf of
another shareholder.

The number of shares for which voting rights are not allowed to be exercised in the preceding
Paragraph shall not be calculated as part of the voting rights represented by attending
shareholders.

Except for trust enterprises or stock agencies approved by the competent authority, when a
person who acts as the proxy for two or more shareholders, the number of voting power
represented by him/her shall not exceed 3% of the total number of voting shares of the
Company, otherwise, the portion of excessive voting power shall not be counted.

Resolutions at a shareholders' meeting shall, unless otherwise provided for in the Company Act
and other regulations, be adopted by a majority vote of the shareholders present, who represent
more than one-half of the total number of voting shares.

During voting, if the chair solicits and receives no dissents, the motion is deemed passed, with
equivalent force as a resolution by vote. On the day of the shareholders' meeting, after the
meeting, the results of shareholders' approval, disapproval and abstention are entered into the
Market Observation Post System.

If shareholders disagree with a motion, they shall vote by a poll in accordance with the
preceding provision. In addition to the motions listed on the agenda, any other motions or
amendments or alternatives to the original motions proposed by shareholders shall be seconded
by other shareholders.

When there is an amendment or an alternative to a proposal, the chair shall present the
amended or alternative proposal together with the original proposal and decide the order in
which they will be put to a vote. When any one among them is passed, the other proposals will
then be deemed rejected, and no further voting shall be required.

Vote monitoring and counting personnel for the voting on a proposal shall be appointed by the
chair, provided that all monitoring personnel shall be shareholders of the Company.

Vote counting for shareholders’ meeting proposals or elections shall be conducted in public at
the place of the shareholders meeting. Immediately after vote counting has been completed, the
results of the voting, including the statistical tallies of the numbers of votes, shall be announced
on-site at the meeting and made into record.

In the event of an election of directors at a shareholders' meeting, the election results, including
the list of elected directors and the number of their elected rights, should be announced on the
spot in accordance with the relevant regulations established by the Company.

The election ballots for the aforementioned election shall be sealed and signed by the vote

monitoring personnel and kept in a safe place for at least one year. However, if any shareholder
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files a lawsuit in accordance with Article 189 of the Company Act, they shall be kept until the
end of the lawsuit

Resolutions adopted at a shareholders' meeting shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting,
which shall be affixed with the signature or seal of the chairman of the meeting and shall be
distributed to all shareholders of the Company within twenty days after the close of the
meeting.

Distribution of the minutes of shareholders' meeting as required in the preceding Paragraph
may be effected by means of public announcement.

The minutes of shareholders' meeting shall record the date and place of the meeting, the name
of the chairman, the method of adopting resolutions, and a summary of the essential points of
the proceedings and the results of the meeting. The minutes shall be kept persistently
throughout the life of the Company.

The preparation and distribution of the minutes of shareholders' meeting as required in the
preceding Paragraph may be effected by means of electronic transmission.

On the day of a shareholders' meeting, the Company shall compile in the prescribed format a
statistical statement of the number of shares obtained by solicitors through solicitation and the
number of shares represented by proxies, and shall make an express disclosure of the same at
the place of the shareholders' meeting.

If the resolution of the shareholders' meeting is required by law to be reported and announced,
it shall be done in accordance with the provisions.

The personnel administering the shareholders' meeting should wear identification cards or
armbands.

The chair may direct proctors or security personnel to help maintain order in the meeting place.
Proctors or security officers, when helping maintain order at the scene, should wear armbands
or identification cards with the word “Proctor”.

If the meeting place is equipped with sound amplifying equipment, the chair may stop any
shareholders from speaking unless they are using the equipment set up by the Company.

When a shareholder violates the rules of procedure, disobeys the chair's correction, or obstructs
the proceedings and refuses to follow the call to stop, the chair may direct proctors or security
personnel to escort the shareholder out of the meeting.

When a meeting is in progress, the chair may announce a break based on time considerations. If
a force majeure event occurs, the chair may rule the meeting temporarily suspended and
announce a time when, in view of the circumstances, the meeting will be resumed.

If the meeting place cannot be further used and not all of the items (including extempore
motions) on the meeting agenda have been addressed, the shareholders' meeting may ratify a
resolution to resume the meeting at another place.

The shareholders' meeting may, in accordance with the provisions of Article 182 of the
Company Act, be resolved to be postponed or resumed within five days.

The Rules shall be effective upon approval by the shareholders' meeting and the same applies
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to any amendment.

6. Attachment: None.
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Regulations for Endorsement and Guarantee [before amendment]

1. Purpose: The Regulations are established to enable the Company's endorsement and guarantee
operations are in compliance with the regulations of the competent authorities. Any matters not
covered by the Regulations shall be handled in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

2. Scope: The endorsee and guarantee of the Company shall be within the following scope:

2.1. Companies with which the Company has a business relationship.

2.2. Subsidiaries in which the Company directly or indirectly holds more than 50% of the voting

shares.
2.3. Companies which directly or indirectly hold more than 50% of the voting shares of the
Company

2.4. The Company may provide endorsement or guarantee for companies in which the Company
directly or indirectly holds more than 90% of the voting shares, and the amount of such
endorsement and guarantee shall not exceed 10% of the Company's net worth. Except for the
endorsement and guarantee between companies in which the Company directly or indirectly
holds 100% of the voting shares.

3. Definition: The endorsement and guarantee referred to in the Regulations include:

3.1. Subsidiary:

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). The net worth of the Company is the equity attributable
to the shareholders of the parent company in the balance sheet as defined in the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers

3.2. Financing endorsement and guarantee:

3.2.1.  Customer notes discount financing

3.2.2.  Endorsement or guarantee for the financing needs of other companies.

3.2.3. Endorsement or guarantee for the financing needs of the Company secured by notes issued
to a non-financial institution.

3.3. Customs duty endorsement and guarantee

3.4. Other endorsements and guarantees: These are endorsements or guarantees that cannot be

classified as the first two items.

3.5. If the Company provides chattel or real estate as security for loans of other companies, the

pledge or mortgage is also subject to the Regulations.

4. Flowchart: None.

5. Operation contents:

5.1.  Endorsement resolution: The total amount of the Company's endorsement and guarantee
obligations and the limit of endorsement and guarantee for a single enterprise shall be as
follows in accordance with the provisions of this provision.

5.1.1.  The total amount of the endorsement and guarantee shall not exceed 50% of the net worth

of the Company (inclusive).
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For a single enterprise, up to 20% of the Company's net worth. The Chairperson is
authorized to decide on the amount up to 15% of the net worth of the Company (inclusive).
If the endorsee and guarantee is 2.1 "a company with which the Company has business
relationships", prior approval from the Board of Directors is required. The amount of the
endorsement and guarantee shall not exceed the total amount of annual business
transactions with the endorsee and guarantee. The amount of the endorsement and
guarantee shall not exceed the amount specified in 5.1.2 above.
However, the Board of Directors may authorize the Chairperson to decide within a certain
amount in accordance with 5.1.2, and then report to the Board of Directors for ratification
afterwards, and report the relevant circumstances to the shareholders' meeting for review.
If the aggregate amount of endorsements/guarantees that is set as the ceiling for the
Company and its subsidiaries as a whole reaches 50% or more of the net worth of the
Company, an explanation of the necessity and reasonableness thereof shall be given at the
shareholders meeting.
Evaluation: When the Company engages in an endorsement or guarantee, the processing
department shall submit a request for approval stating the endorser/guarantor,
endorsee/guarantee, type, reason, amount, collateral, necessity and reasonableness of the
endorsement or guarantee, and the Finance Department shall explain the credit and risk
assessment of the endorsee or guarantee, the impact on the Company's operational risk,
financial condition and shareholders' equity, whether the collateral should be obtained and the
appraised value of the collateral and shall submit a proposal to the Chairperson of the Board
of Directors for approval. The Finance Department shall include the monthly occurrence and
guarantee matters in the computer for itemized control, and announces and reports the
endorsement and guarantee information on a monthly basis in accordance with the regulations
of the competent authority.
Reporting: In addition to announcing and reporting the monthly endorsement and guarantee
balance in accordance with the regulations, the Company shall also announce and report
endorsement and guarantee within two days from the date of occurrence if the endorsement
and guarantee meet one of the following criteria:
The aggregate balance of endorsements/guarantees by the Company and its subsidiaries
reaches 50 percent or more of the Company's net worth as stated in its latest financial
statement.
The aggregate balance of endorsements/guarantees by the Company and its subsidiaries for
a single enterprise reaches 20 percent or more of the Company's net worth as stated in its
latest financial statement.
If the amount of the endorsement and guarantee for a single enterprise reaches at least
NT$10 million and the aggregate amount of the endorsement and guarantee, long-term
investment and lending of funds reach at least 30% of the Company's net worth as stated in

the latest financial statement.
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5.3.4. The amount of new endorsements/guarantees made by the Company or its subsidiaries
reach NT$30 million or more, and reaches 5 percent or more of the Company's net worth
as stated in its latest financial statement.

5.3.5. The Company shall announce and report on behalf of any subsidiary thereof that is not a
company of the Republic of China any matters that such subsidiary is required to announce
and report pursuant to 5.3.4.

The date of occurrence of the facts referred to herein means the earlier of the date of
transaction signing, the date of payment, the date of resolution of the Board of Directors, or

any other date that is sufficient to determine the counterparty and the amount of the
transaction.

5.4. Records:

5.4.1. The Company shall evaluate the risk of endorsement and guarantee and keep evaluation
records, and obtain collaterals if necessary. The relevant notes and the Company's seal
shall be separately kept by dedicated personnel, and the notes shall be sealed or issued in
accordance with the Company's prescribed operating procedures, and the relevant
personnel shall be appointed by the Chairperson with the authorization of the Board of
Directors.

5.4.2. The company seal dedicated for endorsement and guarantee shall be the Company seal
registered with the Ministry of Economic Affairs. The dedicated seal for endorsement and
guarantee shall be kept by a dedicated person agreed by the Board of Directors and shall
not be the same person as the one processing the endorsement and guarantee. The use of
the seal for endorsement and guarantee shall be approved by the leader of authority and
responsibility upon application in accordance with the "Regulations Governing the
Management of Seals" of the Company.

5.4.3. If the Company provides a guarantee for a foreign company, the letter of guarantee issued
by the Company shall be signed by the Chairperson of the Board of Directors with the
authorization of the Board.

5.4.4. The finance unit of the Company shall establish a referendum book to record the details of
the endorsement and guarantee undertaken, the name of the enterprise to be endorsed and
guaranteed, the amount of the endorsement and guarantee, the date of approval by the
Board of Directors or by the Chairperson, the result of risk assessment, the content of the
collateral obtained, and the conditions and date of release from the endorsement and
guarantee for future reference.

5.4.5. The Company shall evaluate and recognize the contingent loss on the endorsement or
guarantee and disclose the endorsement or guarantee information in the financial
statements, and provide the relevant information to CPAs for them to perform the
necessary audit procedures and issue a proper audit report.

5.5. Endorsement and guarantee of subsidiaries: If the Company's subsidiaries intend to endorse or

guarantee for others due to business needs, the operating procedures should be similar to those
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of the parent company. The Company's audit personnel shall periodically review the operating
procedures and actual handling of subsidiaries to see if they are in violation of the regulations
of the competent authorities; if a subsidiary is in violation of the regulations, the Company's
audit personnel shall recommend improvement and follow up on the situation.

If the Company's endorsement and guarantee is necessary for business purposes and exceeds
the limit specified in the endorsement and guarantee procedures and meets the criteria set forth
in the Company's endorsement guarantee procedures, the Board of Directors shall agree and
more than half of the directors shall jointly and severally guarantee the Company's potential
losses arising from the excess amount and amend the endorsement and guarantee procedures
for ratification by the shareholders' meeting; if the shareholders' meeting does not agree, a plan
shall be formulated to eliminate the excess amount within a certain period of time.

Before the Company's subsidiaries in which the Company directly or indirectly holds more than
90% of the voting shares engage in endorsement and guarantee in accordance with Article 2.4.,
the Company shall submit the matter to the Board of Directors for approval before proceeding,
except for inter-company endorsement and guarantee among the companies in which the
Company directly or indirectly holds 100% of the voting shares.

If the Company has independent directors, the opinions of the independent directors shall be
fully considered during the aforementioned Board of Directors' meeting, and the explicit
opinions of the independent directors and the reasons for their objections shall be included in
the minutes of the Board of Directors' meeting.

If the guarantee and endorsee is a subsidiary with a net worth less than one-half of the paid-in
capital, the Company shall report to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis on its
operations, including the status of revenue and cost control, etc.

In the case of a subsidiary with shares having no par value or a par value other than NT$10, for
the paid-in capital in the calculation under the preceding Paragraph, the sum of the share capital
plus paid-in capital in excess of par shall be substituted.

If, due to changes in circumstances, the Company does not meet the criteria of the "Regulations
Governing Loaning of Funds and Making of Endorsements/Guarantees by Public Companies"
or the amount exceeds the limit, the Company shall formulate an improvement plan and send
the improvement plan to the members of the Audit Committee and complete the improvement
according to the schedule of the plan.

If the managerial officer and responsible processing personnel violate the Regulations, the
Company shall impose punishment in accordance with the relevant regulations. If it causes
losses to the Company, the Company will take necessary legal actions in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations.

The internal audit personnel shall audit the endorsement and guarantee procedures and their
implementation at least quarterly, and make written records. If a material violation is

discovered, each Audit Committee member shall be notified in writing immediately.
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5.10. After the approval of the Audit Committee and the approval of the Board of Directors, the
Company has submitted the Regulations to the shareholders' meeting for approval. If any
director expresses dissenting opinions and there are records or written statements, the Company
shall send the dissenting opinions to the members of the Audit Committee and to the
shareholders' meeting for discussion, and the same applies to any amendment.

The opinions of the independent directors shall be fully considered when the Regulations are
submitted to the Board of Directors for discussion, and the explicit opinions of the independent

directors and the reasons for their objections shall be included in the minutes of the Board of

Directors' meeting.

6. Related forms:
6.1 Endorsement and Guarantee Referendum Book M2 4-FA0005
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Procedures for Election of Directors

Purpose: For the compliance with the election of directors
Scope: Independent directors and non-independent directors.
Definition: None.

Flowchart: None.

Operation contents:

5.1. The Procedures are established in accordance with the Company Act, the Securities and

Exchange Act, the Company's Articles of Incorporation and the regulations of the competent

authorities.

5.2. If the Company has independent directors, the election of such directors and the election of

non-independent directors shall be governed by the Procedures, unless otherwise provided by

law or the Articles of Incorporation.

5.2.1.

5.2.1.1.
5.2.1.2.

5.2.2.

52.2.1.
5.2.2.2.
5.2.23.
5224.
5.2.2.5.
5.2.2.6.
5.2.2.7.
5.2.2.8.

The election of directors of the Company shall be made by taking into consideration the
overall configuration of the Board of Directors. The composition of the Board of
Directors shall be made by taking into consideration diversity, formulating appropriate
diversity guidelines with respect to the Company’s operation, business type and
development needs, including but not limited to the following two major criteria:

Basic requirements and values: Gender, age, nationality, and culture, etc.

Professional knowledge and skills: Professional background (e.g., law, accounting,

industry, finance, marketing, technology), professional skills, and industry

experience.
The members of the Board of Directors should generally have the necessary knowledge,
skill, and experience to perform their duties; the board as a whole should have the
following competencies:

The ability to make judgments about operations

Accounting and financial analysis ability.

Business management ability.

Crisis management ability.

Industry knowledge

An international market perspective.

Leadership

Decision-making ability.

5.3. If the vacancy of directors reaches one-third of the number of seats, the Board of Directors

shall convene a special shareholders’ meeting within 30 days to hold a by-election, and the term

of office of the succeeding director shall be limited to the original term of office. However,

after the public offering of the Company’s shares, the special shareholders’ meeting for electing

succeeding directors shall be convened by the Board of Directors within 60 days.

When the number of independent directors is lower than the requirement of the first proviso of
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Article 14-2 of the Securities and Exchange Act, an independent director by-election shall be

held

at the next shareholders meeting. When all independent directors have been dismissed, the

Company shall convene a special shareholders meeting to hold a by-election within 60 days

from the date on which the fact occurred.

5.4. When a government or corporation is a shareholder of the Companyj, its representative shall not

be elected or serve as a director of the Company at the same time, except with the approval of

the competent authority, and the provisions of Article 27, Paragraph 2 of the Company Act shall

not apply.
Except as approved by the competent authority, no more than half of the directors of the

Company shall have one of the following relationships:

54.1.
54.2.

Spouses

Relatives within 2nd degree of kinship

Unless approved by the competent authority, the Company shall consider adjusting the
composition of the Board of Directors based on the results of the performance evaluation,
and at least one of the directors shall not have one of the relationships in the preceding

Paragraph:

5.5. Ifan elected director of the Company does not comply with the provisions of the second or

third Paragraph of the preceding Article, the election of directors shall be determined in

accordance with the following provisions:

5.5.1.

If a director does not comply with the provisions of the preceding Article, the election of
the director who has received a lower number of voting rights among the directors who do

not comply with the provisions of the preceding Article shall be ineffective.

5.6.  The independent directors of the Company shall possess one of the following professional

qualifications:

5.6.1.

5.6.2.

5.6.3.

5.6.3.1.
5.6.3.2.

An instructor or higher up in a department of commerce, law, finance, accounting, or other
academic department related to company business in a public or private junior college,
college, or university for more than 5 years.
A judge, public prosecutor, attorney, certified public accountant, or other professional or
technical specialist who has passed a national examination and has been awarded a
certificate in a professional capacity that is necessary for company business for more than
5 years
Having work experience in the area of commerce, law, finance or accounting, or otherwise
necessary for company business for more than 5 years. A person who is under any of the
following circumstances shall not act as an independent director. If he or she has been
appointed as such, he or she shall certainly be discharged:
Any of the circumstances in the Subparagraphs of Article 30 of the Company Act.
Elected in the capacity of a government agency, a corporation, or a representative

thereof, as provided in Article 27 of the Company Act.
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5.6.3.3. Violation of the qualifications of independent directors as stipulated in the

Procedures.

5.7.  The independent directors of the Company shall be eligible for re-election and shall not be

under any of the following conditions during the two years preceding their election and during

their term of office:

5.7.1.
5.7.2.

5.7.3.

5.7.4.

5.7.5.

5.7.6.

5.7.7.

An employee of the Company or any of its affiliates.

A director or supervisor of the Company or any of its affiliates. Except for those who are
independent directors of the Company or its parent company, or of a company in which the
Company directly or indirectly holds more than 50% of the voting shares.

A natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person's
spouse, minor children, or held by the person under others' names, in an aggregate of one
percent or more of the total number of issued shares of the Company, or ranking among the
top 10 natural-person shareholders in holdings.

The spouse, a relative within the second degree of kinship, or a relative within the fifth
degree of kinship of a person listed in the preceding three Paragraphs.

A director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate shareholder directly holding 5% or more
of the total number of issued shares of the Company, or among the top 5 in shareholdings.
A director, supervisor, executive officer, or shareholder holding five percent or more of the
shares, of a specified company or institution that has a financial or business relationship
with the Company.

A professional individual or an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or officer of a sole
proprietorship, partnership, company, or institution that provides commercial, legal,
financial, accounting or related services and advice to the Company or any affiliate of the
Company, or a spouse thereof.

The term “specified company or institution” referred to in the preceding Paragraph 5.7.6

means an entity having any of the following relationships with the Company:

5.7.7.1. It holds 20 percent or more and no more than 50 percent of the total number of

5.7.7.2.

5.7.7.3.

5.7.7.4.

issued shares of the public company.

It holds shares, together with those held by any of its directors, supervisors, and
shareholders holding more than 10 percent of the total number of shares, in an
aggregate total of 30 percent or more of the total number of issued shares of the
public company, and there is a record of financial or business transactions between
it and the public company. The shareholdings of any of the aforesaid persons
include the shares held by the spouse or any minor child of the person or by the
person under others' names.

It and its affiliated companies are the source of 30 percent or more of the operating
revenue of the public company.

Another company and its affiliated companies are the source of 50 percent or more

of the total volume or total purchase amount of principal raw materials (those that
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account for 30 percent or more of total procurement costs, and are indispensable and
key raw materials in product manufacturing) or principal products (those accounting
for 30 percent or more of total operating revenue) of the public company.
The parent company and affiliated companies referred to in the Procedures shall be
recognized in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 5 and SFAS No. 7
issued by ARDF.
No more than three independent directors of the Company shall concurrently serve as
independent directors of other companies.
The election of independent directors of the Company shall be conducted in accordance with
the nomination system set forth in the Company's Articles of Incorporation. The company
shall, prior to the share transfer suspension date dedicated before the meeting date of a
shareholders’ meeting, announce in a public notice, the period for accepting the nomination
of independent director candidates, the quota of directors to be elected, the place designated
for accepting the roster of director candidates nominated, and other necessary matters. The
length of the period for accepting the nomination of independent director candidates shall
not be shorter than ten (10) days.
The Company may propose a list of candidates for election as independent directors in the
following manner, and after the Board of Directors assesses that the candidates meet the
requirements for independent directors, the Company shall submit the list to the
shareholders' meeting for election.
Any shareholder holding 1 percent or more of the total outstanding shares of the
Company may submit to the Company in writing a list of independent director candidates,
provided that the total number of candidates so nominated does not exceed the seats
slated for an independent director.
The number of candidates for independent directors submitted by the Board of Directors
shall not exceed the seats slated.
Other methods of nomination as allowed by the competent authority.
The Board of Directors or other authorized conveners of sharecholders’ meetings shall
examine and/or screen the data and information of each director candidate nominated;
and shall, unless under any of the following circumstances, include all qualified director

candidates in the final roster of director candidates accordingly:

5.9.3.1. The list of nominated independent director candidates is submitted by the

nominating shareholder outside the announced period for accepting the nomination

of independent director candidates.

5.9.3.2. Where the number of shares of the Company being held by the nominating

shareholder is less than 1% of the total number of outstanding shares of the
Company at the time when the share transfer registration is suspended by the
Company in accordance with the provisions set out in Paragraph II or Paragraph III,
Article 165 of the Company Act;
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5.9.3.3. The number of independent director candidates nominated exceeds the seats slated

for independent director.

5.9.3.4. The relevant supporting documents as required in the preceding Paragraph were not

5.10.

5.11.

5.12.

5.13.

5.14.

5.15.

5.15.1.
5.15.2.
5.15.3.
5.15.4.

attached to the list.

The Company's directors are elected by the cumulative registered system and each share
shall have the same number of voting rights as the number of directors to be elected, which
may be cast collectively for a single candidate or split among several candidates. Those
receiving the highest numbers of voting rights will be elected sequentially according to their
respective numbers of votes. If the Company has independent directors, Independent
directors and non-independent directors should be elected together, but their respective
elected numbers shall be calculated separately. At least one of them shall have accounting or
financial expertise.
If an independent director is elected by the shareholders' meeting, he/she shall not change
his/her status to a non-independent director if he/she violates 5.6 or 5.7 of this Article during
his/her term of office and should be dismissed. A person who is elected as a nonrindependent
director by the shareholders' meeting shall not be reassigned as an independent director
during his or her term of office.
The Board of Directors should prepare election ballots corresponding to the number of
directors to be elected, specify the number of voting rights on the ballots and distribute the
ballots to the shareholders attending the shareholders’ meeting. Attendance card numbers
printed on the ballots may be used instead of recording the names of candidates.
The number of directors will be as specified in the Company's Article of incorporation.
Those receiving the highest numbers of voting rights will be elected sequentially according
to their respective numbers of votes. When two or more persons receive the same number of
votes, thus exceeding the specified number of directors, they shall draw lots to determine,
with the chair drawing lots for those not in attendance.
Before the election begins, the chair should appoint a number of persons with shareholder
status as vote monitoring and counting personnel to perform the respective duties. The ballot
boxes shall be prepared by the Board of Directors and publicly checked by the vote
monitoring personnel before voting begins.
A ballot is invalid if any of the following is true:

Do not use ballots prepared by the Board of Directors.

Put void ballots into the ballot box.

The handwriting is blurred and unrecognizable or has been altered.

If the person to be elected is a shareholder, his or her account name or shareholder

account number does not match with the shareholder roster; if the person to be elected is

not a shareholder, his or her name and identification number do not match after

verification.
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5.15.5.  In addition to the account name and shareholder account number (identification number)

of the person to be elected and the number of voting rights allocated, other words are

included.

5.15.6. The name of the candidate is the same as that of other shareholders without the

5.16.

5.17.

5.18.

5.19.

5.20.

5.21.

shareholder's account number or identification number for verification purposes.
After the voting is completed, the ballot box should be opened on the spot. The results of the
voting shall be announced by the chair on the spot, including the list of directors elected and
the number of their elected rights.
The election ballots for the aforementioned election shall be sealed and signed by the vote
monitoring personnel and kept in a safe place for at least one year. However, if a lawsuit has
been instituted by any shareholder in accordance with the provisions of Article 189 of the
Company Act, the minutes of the shareholders' meeting involved shall be kept by the
Company until the legal proceedings of the foregoing lawsuit have been concluded.
The Board of Directors of the Company shall issue a notice of election to the elected directors
and independent directors.
Matters not provided for in this Act shall be governed by the Company Act, the Securities and
Exchange Act and related laws and regulations.
Provisions 5.4 and 5.5 of the Procedures shall be applicable to newly elected directors after
the public offering of the Company's shares.
The provisions of the Procedures regarding provisions 5.6 to 5.11 shall be applicable after the
appointment of independent directors of the Company.
The Procedures shall be effective upon approval by the shareholders' meeting and the same

applies to any amendment.

6. Attachment: None.
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Articles of Incorporation

Chapter 1 General Provisions
The Company is organized in accordance with the provisions of the Company
Act and is named CUB ELECPARTS INC.

The business of the Company is as follows:

I. ~ CDO01030 Motor Vehicles and Parts Manufacturing

II.  F114030 Wholesale of Motor Vehicle Parts and Motorcycle Parts,
Accessories

III. F214030 Retail Sale of Motor Vehicle Parts and Motorcycle Parts,
Accessories

IV. F401010 International Trade

V. 1501010 Product Designing

VI. CC01080 Electronics Components Manufacturing

VII. CCO01101 Controlled Telecommunications Radio-Frequency Devices and
Materials Manufacturing

VIII. CC01990 Other Electrical Engineering and Electronic Machinery
Equipment Manufacturing

IX. CDO01040 Motorcycles and Parts Manufacturing

X. CDO01990 Other Transport Equipment and Parts Manufacturing

XI. CC01070 Wireless Communication Mechanical Equipment Manufacturing

XII. CDO01010 Ships and Parts Manufacturing

XIIL. ZZ99999 All business items that are not prohibited or restricted by law,

except those that are subject to special approval.

The total amount of the Company's external investments may exceed 40% of the

paid-in capital for business purposes.

The Company may, with the approval of the Board of Directors, provide an

endorsement or guarantee externally for the Company's business needs.
The Company shall have its head office in Changhua County and, if necessary,

may establish domestic and foreign branch companies by resolution of the Board

of Directors.
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Chapter 2 Share

The total capital of the Company shall be fixed at NT$ billion, divided into 200
million shares, all of which shall be common shares in the amount of NT$10
each, of which unissued shares are authorized to be issued by the Board of
Directors in installments. Of these shares, 10 million shares are reserved for the
exercise of stock option warrants, preferred shares with warrants or corporate

bonds with warrants.

The Board of Directors is authorized to repurchase the Company's shares when
the Company is legally required to do so by law.

In the event that the Company transfers shares to employees at a price lower than
the average price of the shares actually repurchased or issues employee stock
options at a price lower than the market price (net worth per share), approval
should be required with the presence of shareholders representing a majority of
the total number of issued shares, and two-thirds or more of the sharcholders

present in favor of such transfer.

The shares issued by the Company may be exempted from printing stocks, but
the shares should be registered with the centralized securities depository

institution.

The Company's shares may be exchanged for large denomination securities at the

request of the Taiwan Depository and Clearing Corporation.

Except as otherwise provided by laws and regulations, the Company shall follow
the "Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public
Companies" when transferring shares, pledging, registering for loss, inheriting,

bestowing as gifts, losing the seal, changing the address, etc. by the shareholders.

Chapter 3 Shareholders’ Meeting

The ownership transfer of shares shall cease within 60 days prior to the
convening date of a regular shareholders' meeting, or within 30 days prior to the
convening date of a special shareholders' meeting, or within 5 days prior to the
target date fixed by the issuing company for distribution of dividends, bonus or

other benefits.
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Article 11: There are two types of shareholders’ meeting: regular and extraordinary. The
regular meeting is held once a year and shall be convened by the Board of
Directors in accordance with Article 172 of the Company Act within six months
after the end of each fiscal year. A special meeting can be convened according to

the law when necessary.

Article 12: If a shareholder is unable to attend a shareholders' meeting for any reason, the
"Rules Governing the Use of Proxy Forms for Attending Shareholders' Meetings
of Public Companies" shall be followed.

Article 13: The shareholders of the Company shall have one voting right per share, except
for those who have no voting rights as listed in Article 179 of the Company Act.

Article 14: The Chairperson of the Board of Directors should chair the shareholders’
meeting. In the event that the Chairperson of the Board of Directors is absent
from office, the Chairperson of the Board of Directors shall designate a person to
act as his or her proxy; if no such designation is made, the directors shall elect a
proxy from among themselves. If the shareholders’ meeting is convened by
someone with the convening right but other than the Board of Directors, the chair
of the meeting shall be selected in accordance with the provisions of Article
182-1 of the Company Act.

Article 15: Resolutions at a shareholders' meeting shall, unless otherwise provided for in the
Company Act and other regulations, be adopted by a majority vote of the
shareholders present, who represent more than one-half of the total number of
voting shares.

During voting, if the chair solicits the attending shareholders and receives no
dissents, the motion is deemed passed, with equivalent force as a resolution by
vote. In accordance with the regulations of the competent authority, the
shareholders of the Company may also exercise their voting rights electronically.
Shareholders who exercise their voting rights electronically are considered to be
present in person, and the relevant matters shall be handled in accordance with

the provisions of laws and regulations.

Article 16: Resolutions adopted at a shareholders' meeting shall be recorded in the minutes
of the meeting, which shall be affixed with the signature or seal of the chairman
of the meeting and shall be distributed to all shareholders of the Company within
twenty days after the close of the meeting, and may be announced as such. The

minutes of shareholders' meeting shall record the date and place of the meeting,
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the name of the chairman, the method of adopting resolutions, and a summary of
the essential points of the proceedings and the results of the meeting. The

minutes shall be kept persistently throughout the life of the Company.

Chapter 4 Directors, Audit committee

The Company shall have five to seven directors, whose selection is based on the
candidate nomination system. The number of directors is authorized to be
determined by the Board of Directors for a term of three years from among
persons capable of conduct and they shall be eligible for re-election. After the
election, the Board of Directors may resolve to purchase liability insurance for
the Company's directors.

The total shareholding of all directors shall be in accordance with the regulations
of the competent securities authorities.

The Company's directors are elected by the single cumulative registered voting
system and the number of votes exercisable in respect of one share shall be the
same as the number of directors to be elected, and the total number of votes per
share may be consolidated for the election of one candidate or may be split for
the election of two or more candidates. A candidate to whom the ballots cast
represent a prevailing number of votes shall be deemed a director elect. If there is
a need to amend the method, the amendment shall be made in accordance with
Article 172 of the Company Act, and the comparison of amended provisions of

the method shall be listed in the causes and subjects of the shareholders’ meeting.

The number of independent directors shall not be less than three and shall not be
less than one-fifth of the total number of directors among the aforesaid number of
directors of the Company.

The election of directors (including independent directors) of the Company shall
be based on the candidate nomination system as stipulated in Article 192-1 of the
Company Act, and the implementation of which shall be in accordance with the
provisions of the Company Act, the Securities and Exchange Act and other
relevant laws and regulations.

The election of directors shall be conducted in accordance with Article 198 of the
Company Act. Independent directors and non-independent directors shall be
elected together and the number of elected seats shall be calculated separately,
and those who receive more votes representing the voting right shall be elected
sequentially as independent directors and non-independent directors respectively.

The professional qualifications, restrictions on shareholding and concurrent
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employment, determination of independence, nomination and election of
independent directors, and other matters to be complied with shall be in

accordance with the relevant regulations of the competent securities authorities.

In calling a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company, a notice setting
forth therein the subjects to be discussed at the meeting shall be given to each
director no later than 7 days prior to the scheduled meeting date. But the Board
meeting may be convened at any time in case of emergency. Notice of a meeting
of the Board of Directors may be given to the Directors in writing, by e-mail or

by facsimile.

If the vacancy of directors reaches one-third of the number of seats, the Board of
Directors shall convene a special shareholders’ meeting within 30 days to hold a
by-election, and the term of office of the succeeding director shall be limited to

the original term of office.

In case no election of new directors is effected after the expiration of the term of
office of existing directors, the term of office of out-going directors shall be
extended until the time new directors have been elected and assumed their office.
However, the competent authority may, ex officio, order the Company to elect
new directors within a given time limit; and if no re-election is effected after the
expiry of the given time limit, the out-going directors shall be discharged ipso

facto from such expiration date.

The directors shall organize the Board of Directors' meeting and elect the
Chairperson from among themselves with the presence of at least two-thirds of
the directors and the consent of a majority of the directors present to execute all
affairs of the Company in accordance with the regulations, the Articles of
Incorporation, and the resolutions of the shareholders' meeting and the Board of

Directors' meeting.

The Board of Directors shall decide on the Company's business policies and other
important matters. Except for the first meeting of the Board of Directors, which
shall be convened in accordance with Article 203 of the Company Act, the Board
of Directors shall be convened by the Chairperson of the Board of Directors, who
shall be the chair of the Board meetings. If the Chairperson of the Board of
Directors is unable to perform his or her duties, the Chairperson of the Board of
Directors shall designate one of the directors to act on his or her behalf, or in the

absence of such designation, the directors shall elect one among themselves to act
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on his or her behalf.

Unless otherwise provided in the Company Act, a majority of the directors shall
be present at a meeting of the Board of Directors, and the consent of a majority of
the directors present shall be required. If for any reason a director is unable to
attend a meeting of the Board of Directors, he or she may issue a proxy form
stating the scope of authority for the causes and subjects of the meeting and
appoint another director to attend the meeting on his or her behalf, provided that
one person can only be entrusted by one person. In case a meeting of the Board
of Directors is conducted via video conferencing, directors taking part in such a

video conference shall be deemed to have attended the meeting in person.

Resolutions adopted at a Board meeting shall be recorded in the minutes of the
meeting, which shall be affixed with the signature or seal of the chairman of the
meeting and shall be distributed to all shareholders of the Company within
twenty days after the close of the meeting electronically. The minutes of
shareholders' meeting shall record the date and place of the meeting, the name of
the chairman, the method of adopting resolutions, and a summary of the essential
points of the proceedings and the results of the meeting. The minutes shall be

kept persistently throughout the life of the Company.

The Company shall establish an audit committee in accordance with Article 14-4
of the Securities and Exchange Act. The audit committee shall consist of all
independent directors, and the audit committee or members of the audit
committee shall be responsible for carrying out the duties and responsibilities of
the supervisors under the Company Act, the Securities and Exchange Act, and
other laws and regulations. The Supervisors shall be abolished at the same time
as the Audit Committee is established.

The remuneration of the Company's directors, no matter if the Company has
profit or loss, is authorized to be determined by the Board of Directors based on
their participation in the Company's operations and the value of their
contributions, in accordance with industry practice and usual standards.

The Company may set reasonable remuneration for independent directors that are

different from that of regular directors.

Chapter 5 Managerial Officers

The Company may have managerial officers whose appointment, dismissal and
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remuneration shall be in accordance with Article 29 of the Company Act.

Chapter 6 Accounting

Article 27: At the end of each fiscal year, the Board of Directors shall prepare the following
reports and submit them to the Audit Committee for review before presenting
them to the regular shareholders’ meeting for adoption thirty days prior to the
regular shareholders’ meeting.

(1) Business Report
(2) Financial statements

(3) Earnings distribution or losses make-up proposal

Article 28: The net profits of the Company as concluded by the annual accounting book
close, shall be distributed in the following order:
L. Pay income tax in accordance with the law.
II. I1. Make up for prior years' losses.
III.  Set aside 10% as legal reserve, except when the accumulated legal reserve
has reached the Company's total capital.
IV.  Appropriate or reverse the special reserve as required by law or as

necessary for its operations.

Article 28-1: The Board of Directors shall, after deducting the preceding items, prepare a
bonus distribution proposal to shareholders based on the remaining balance
together with the accumulated undistributed earnings of prior years and submit it
to the shareholders’ meeting for resolution. Bonuses to shareholders—ané
empleyees-may be paid in the form of stock dividends or cash dividends.

Not less than 2% and not more than 8% of the Company's profits before tax for
the year, after making up for the accumulated losses, shall be appropriated as
profit sharing remuneration to employees and not less than 1% and not more than
5% as profit sharing remuneration to directors. The Company is required to
distribute employees' profit sharing remuneration when the Company makes
profits, whether or not dividends are distributed to shareholders.

The aforementioned employee profit sharing remuneration may be paid in shares
(treasury stock, new shares) or cash to employees who meet certain criteria such
as job rank and performance, and may be approved by the Board of Directors (by

special resolution) and reported to the shareholders' meeting.

Article 29: The Company is in a growth stage and based on capital expenditure, business
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expansion needs and sound financial planning for sustainable development, the

Company's dividend policy is to distribute retained earnings to shareholders in

the form of stock dividends and cash dividends based on the Company's future

capital expenditure budget and capital requirements, with the cash dividend

percentage not less than 5% of the total shareholders' bonus.

After the Company is publicly listed and intends to withdraw from the public

offering, it shall submit the proposal to the shareholders meeting for resolution.

This Article will not be amended during the Company's existence in the

Emerging Stock Board and the TWSE or OTC market.

All matters not provided for in these Articles of Incorporation shall be governed

by the Company Law and other laws and regulations.

The Articles were established on January 5, 1989.

The 1st amendment was made on February 15, 1990.
The 2nd amendment was made on December 23, 1991.
The 3rd amendment was made on November 10, 1993.
The 4th amendment was made on July 1, 2004.

The 5th amendment was made on August 29, 2004.
The 6th amendment was made on October 26, 2004.
The 7th amendment was made on May 27, 2005.

The 8th amendment was made on December 15, 2005.
The 9th amendment was made on June 28, 2006.

The 10th amendment was made on May 28, 2007.

The 11th amendment was made on October 23, 2007.
The 12th amendment was made on October 23, 2007.
The 13th amendment was made on May 28, 2008.

The 14th amendment was made on November 28, 2008.

The 15th amendment was made on June 10, 2009.
The 16th amendment was made on June 25, 2010.
The 17th amendment was made on June 25, 2010.
The 18th amendment was made on June 19, 2012.
The 19th amendment was made on June 17, 2014.
The 20th amendment was made on August 18, 2015.
The 21st amendment was made on January 8§, 2016.
The 22nd amendment was made on June 13, 2017.
The 23rd amendment was made on April 17, 2019.
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CUB ELECPARTS INC.

Chairperson: Yu, Shan-Chuan
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Appendix 7

Information on profit sharing remuneration for employees and directors
and supervisors

In accordance with the letter Jing-Guan-Zheng-Liu-Zi No. 0960013218 dated March 30,
2007 from FSC, Executive Yuan, the Company disclosed the following information on

profit sharing remuneration for employees and directors and supervisors:

Unit: NTD $
Board of ,
. Estimated .
o Directors' Difference Reasons for
Distributable annual amount _
_ proposed _ amount | differences and
items: L of recognized
distribution (A-B) treatment
expenses (B)
amount (A)
Profit sharing 0 0 0
remuneration
for employees
(stock)
Profit sharing 12,997,136 12,997,136 0
remuneration
None
for employees
(cash)
Profit sharing 6,498,568 6,498,568 0
remuneration
for directors and
SUpervisors
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Shareholding of directors

Appendix 8

I.  Asof March 28, 2021, the date of stock transfer suspension of the shareholders' meeting, the
Company's capital stock was NT$1,219,166,650 and the total number of issued shares was
121,916,665.

II. In accordance with Article 26 of the Securities and Exchange Act, the minimum number of shares
required to be held by all directors is 8,000,000 shares.

ITII. In accordance with Article 2 of the "Rules and Review Procedures for Director and Supervisor
Share Ownership Ratios at Public Companies", if two or more independent directors are elected at
the same time, the percentage of shareholding of all directors other than independent directors is
reduced to 80%.

IV. The number of shares held by each individual director and all directors as recorded in the
shareholder roster has met the legal percentage standard.

V. Details of shareholding of all directors

Shareholder roster as of
Sharcholding while the date of stoqk transfer
Date Term clected suspension
Position Name of Number of shares held as
elected
office recorded
Number of |Shareholding| Number of [Shareholding
shares percentage shares percentage
Jun Chang
Investment Co., 3
Chairperson|Ltd. 2019.04.17 cars 14,457,662 12.55%| 14,522,645 11.91%
Representative: y
Yu, Shan-Chuan
Jun Rui Investment
. Co., Ltd. 3 0 o
Director . 2019.04.17 13,597,554 11.81%| 13,739,638 11.27%
Representative: years
Huang, Shu-Yuan

Director Chang, Tzu-Hsiung(2019.04.17| 3 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

years

Director Hsieh, Hsiu-Chi  |2019.04.17( 3 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

years

Independent |Chang, Chuan-Li [2019.04.17| 3 4,259 0.00% 8,000 0.01%

director

years
Independent |Chen, Kuang-Long [2019.04.17| 3 35,279 0.03% 37,775 0.03%
director
years
Independent  |Chang, Kung-Pi ~ [2019.04.17] 3 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
director years
Total shareholding of directors 28,094,754 24.39%] 28,308,058 23.22%
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Appendix 9

Effect of the proposed stock dividends at the shareholders' meeting on the Company's operating results,
earnings per share and shareholders' return on investment: The Company is not required to disclose
financial forecast information for 2022, so it is not applicable.
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